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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC &. HOVSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 l-800<452.334S Ext. 9474

Fax; 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

July 21. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed
below for the ongoing provision of Permanent Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and
families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of Care Program,
by exercising contract renewal options and by increasing the total price limitation by $662,992
from $668,260 to $1,331,252 and by extending the completion dates from July 31, 2020 to July
31, 2021 effective retroactive to August 1. 2020 upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

#23.

The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council on July 31. 2019. item

Vendor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served

Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Cross Roads House.

Inc., Portsmouth, NH

177203-

8003

Eastern

Rockingham,
Stratford &

Merrimack

Counties

$383,020 $377,752 $760,772

The Mental Health

Center for Southern

New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life

Management, Derry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$285,240 $285,240 $570,480

Total; $668,260 $662,992 $1,331,252

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because funds anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year
2021 were not yet appropriated in the operating budget. The Department continues to work
closely with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to maintain open
communication and efforts supporting the more timely delivery of grant agreements from HUD.
This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to specify each
vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application
process, prior to the grant award being issued. Based on the application evaluation process, HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of these requests are to continue providing Permanent Housing programs
that deliver rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive services to individuals
and families who are experiencing homelessness.

The programs serve individuals and families experiencing homelessness as well as adults
who are experiencing homelessness while living with mental illness. Approximately fifty-three (53)
individuals will l)e served from August 1, 2020 to July 31, 2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, vendors facilitate each participant's movement into sustained permanent
housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to maximize each
participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following tools:
•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual

agreements.
•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and

income and expense reports, to include match dollars.
•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and

accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
System. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter
and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and supportive services available, leaving vulnerable individuals and families, in
unsafe and deadly situations, without a safety net. Additionally, if data is not collected as required
by the contracts, the Department will be out of compliance vrith federal regulations, which could
result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types of permanent housing and supportive
service programs.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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Area served: Rockingham, Strafford and Merrimack Counties

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN#s: NH0095L1T001904. NH0014L1T001912

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Seruicet' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence, i



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CONTINUUM OF CARE. CROSS ROADS HOUSE AND CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT PERMANENT HOUSING CONTRACT AMENDMENTS
SFY 2020 - 2022 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES,

HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING-SHELTER PROGRAM

100% General Funds

CoC Funds • NH009SL1T001904

Vendor #177203-8003

Cross Roads House, Inc.. Portsmouth. NH

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified Budget

2020 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42309609 351.102 - 351.102

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services T8D 31.918 346.273 378.191

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services TBD - 31.479 31.479

Sub Total 383,020 377,752 760.772

100% General Funds

CoC Funds • NH0014L1T001912

Vendor #177200-8004

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified Budget

2020 * 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42301102 261,470 - 261,470

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD 23,770 251,470 285,240

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD • 23.770 23,770

Sub Total 265,240 285,240 570,480

Grand Total 668,2601 662,9921 1,331,2521

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA.07-A01; and

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-05-A01

Financial Oetal

Page i of 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #1
to the Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Contract

This 1®' Amendment to the Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
Cross Roads House, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place
of business at 600 Lafayette Road. Portsmouth. NH 03801.

WHEREAS,, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31, 2019, (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal., the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

July 31, 2021. ^
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$760,772.

3.

4.

5.

6.

Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers: NH0095L1T001803 (August 1. 2019 through July 31, 2020);
NH0095L1T001904 (August 1, 2020 through July 31, 2021)

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.1, to read;

1.2.7.1 August 1, 2020-July 31, 2021, not to exceed $377,752

Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8, to read;

1.2.8 Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:

August 1, August 1, Total
Description 2019 through 2020 through Cumulative

July 31. 2020 July 31, 2021 Amount

1.2.8.1 Supportive Services: $68,354 $68,354 $136,708

1.2.8.2 Rental Assistance: $305,736 $300,468 $606;204

1.2.8.3 Administrative Expenses: $8,930 $8,930 $17,860
1.2.8.4 Total Program Amount: $383,020 $377,752 $760,772

1.2.8.5 Vendor Match (25%): $97,988 $96,670 $194,658

Add Exhibit 8-1, Amendment#1 Budget Worksheet, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by
reference herein.

Cross Roads House. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07.A01

Amendment #1

Page 1 of 3

Contractor Initials

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to August 1. 2020, upon the date of Governor and
Executive Councii approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date I » Name: J V . •
Christina Santaniello

Title:
Director, OEMS

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Name: MArtWi ̂ fcne.

Fxcct.c/jU'if

Cross Roads House, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA.07-A01 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, CRH/CCEH Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/06/20
Date Name:

Title: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name;

Title:

Cross Roads House, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07-A01 Page 3 of 3



P«rin*n«nt Supporitv« Houslni Expantlon Exhibit B-1

Crotfl Roads Houst/CCEH Pormanant Supportlv* Housing Expansion

|CoC Funds • NK009SUT001904

■757sr?K55R>ar755r
5^2021 • 8/i/2(«/30/2i

Actlvjty Nanw
R

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
ental Asptianea S 27$.mA>

Supponh/a SarvicM
Administration
29% Raqurad Matcti

a, 186.00

toTAL HUd fUnD5/8Alance
88J1A.00

414.187.00 I 946.271.00

Yotal program cost
's™22"' >/i/21-7/31/21

contractor share

Aetlvtty Namo BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY
Rental Asaisttmia 2s.(n«.oa
St<3portiva Sarvicas
AdmUOitrawn

2SH Raquirad Match
TOTAL HUD PUND5/EIAUUJCE

8.068.00

t  8,068.00 t  31.478.00

■757SrPR55RXBr75sr
TOTAL ■ 8/1/20-7/31/21

CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE
Activity Name
R

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY BUDGET YTD MONTHLY
enal Asslsainca 100,48800 t 300,468.00

Suppordva Saivkias
AOninistmson

29% Raquirao Mson
8,910.00 8.930.00

TOTAL HUP FUNBS/BALAWCB
1 98.670.00

t 88.878.00 8 377.792.00

Total W/O Matd) 377.762

Croil Roads Houst/CCCH
SS-2020-eHS44^ERMA-07-A01
Exhibit B-i

Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that CROSS ROADS HOUSE,

INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 24, 19S2. I further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofilce have been received and is in good standing as far as

this office is concerned.

Business ID: 62166

Certificate Number: 0004907288

y
Ui

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 4th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Ben St. Jean hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Cross Roads House. Inc. .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 30 2020 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That . Martha Stone. Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Cross Roads House. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 7-22-20

Signature of Elected Officer

Name.

Title: r".

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

05/05/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCEfl

RSC insurance Brokerage. Inc.

One New Hampshire Avenue

Suite 125

Portsmouth NH 03801

contact Melisa Weeks

PHONE /601177ftJtdftS I'**
(|e/C. No. B.ll: (WC. No):

ADMESS' T^meeksigrisk-stralegles.com
INSURER($) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC f

INSURER A Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

INSURED

Cross Roads House, Inc.

600 Lafayette Rd

Pohsmouth NH 03801

INSURER B
Markel/FirstComp 27626

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAYBE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
!>Ubk
vwo

POLICY EFF
(MWOOA'YYYI

POLICY EXP
(MMJOO/YYYY)TYPE OF INSURANCE

AOOL

'NSO POLICY NUMBER LIMITS
INSR
LTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE X OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

WMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MEO EXP (Any one p«f»oo)

PHPK2083243 01/10/2020 01/10/2021
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO
JECTPOLICY

,wAic uiHAM ArruicjT

□ fi's □LOC

OTHER:

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - C0MPA3PAGG

Damage to Premises

1.000,000

5.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000.000

1.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

X

COMBINE&SlNeLE LIMIT
(Ea Bccld»fi» 1.000.000

BODILY INJURY (Par person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2083243 01/10/2020 01/10/2021 BODILY INJURY (Par acdoenl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accldenti

X UMBRELLA DAB

EXCESS DAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-UADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 6.000.000

PHUB707533 01/10/2020 01/10/2021 6,000.000

X RETENTION $ 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandaiory In NH)
If yes. describe ur>der
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE
OTH
ER

m WC010284011 01/10/2020 01/10/2021 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS (LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORO 101, AddiUonal Ramarlis Schedule, mey be ettsched II more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord • NH 03301-3857
1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

(£> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO



CROSS
ROADS
HOUSE

About Cross Roads House

We're local people helping each other.

Since 1982, Cross Roads House has been pioviding emergency and transitional sliclter
to honielcss men, women, and children in the New Hampshire Seacoast area. Wc arc
guided by our mission, to meet the immediate needs of homeless families and
individuals, and to provide them with the tools and guidance they need to successfully
return to permanent housing. We currently house approximately 100 people on any
given night, and our emergency shelter is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year Ended June 3.0, 2019

with Sun-»marized Financial Information

for the Year Ended June 30, 2018
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Sanders & Karcher

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Cross Roads House, Inc.

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cross Roads House, Inc.
(a nonprofit organization) as of June 30, 2019 which comprise the statements of
financial position and the related statements of activities, functional expenses
and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or -error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

.An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In ma.king those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. Accordingly, we- express no such opinion. .An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence v/e have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
CO provide a basis for our audit opinion.

-1-



Board of Directors

Cross Roads House, Inc.

Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cross Roads House, Inc. as of June
30, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flov/s for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Cross Roads House, Inc.'s financial statements, and we
expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in
our report dated October 16, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from
which it has been derived.

Sanders i Karcher

Portsmouth, New Hampshire
September 16-, 2019

-2-



ASSETS

CROSS ROADS HOUSE. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,

2019 2018

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Unconditional promises to give
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

321,023
4, 988

134,294
135,6T8

97,934

693,917

296,061
3, 886

135,467

194,075

44,853

674,342

PROPERTY fi EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated

depreciation of SI,701,060 & 51,537,549,
respectively

OTHER ASSETS

Closing costs, net of accumulated amortization
of 51,664 i $1,502, respectively

Cash and marketable securities, long-term reserve

Beneficial interest in assets held by others

Cash and cash equivalents, operating reserve
Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

4, 771, 523 . 4, 935, 034

2, 935

837,157

132,451

126,560

1,099,103

3,097

757,367

134,7.58

126,746

1,021,968

S  6. 564. 543 $

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deferred income

Long-term debt, current portion

Security deposits-Greenieaf Apartments

Accrued payroll items
Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portion
Total liabilities

38,272

10,000

21,689

6,728
67,367

144,056

579,544

723,600

32,133

25,000

23,672

52,530

133,335

601,639

734,974

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

Board Designated
Undesignated

V^ith donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

963,717

4,744,775

132,451

5,840,943

5 ^5_64^^3 $

884,113

4,791,499

220,758

5, 896, 370

6.631,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, IMC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years ended June 30,

2019 2018

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUES;

PUBLIC SUPPORT

Government grants

Donations

Rental income

Fundraising, net of direct expenses of S 45, 54'?
and $63,137, respectively

Total public support

588,763

636,763

94,981

421,010

1,741,517

535,348
589,882

465,703
1,590,933

REVENUES

Investment return

Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

51,134

51,134

1,792,651

59,788

59,788

1,650,721

EXPENSES

Program services
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total expenses

1,298,764

265,879

117,456

1,682,099

1,198,072

288,636

98,360

1,585,068

■CHANGE IN OPERATING NET ASSETS BEFORE DEPRECIATION
Less depreciation and amortization

110,"552
163,673

65,653
155,727

DECREASE IN OPERATING NET ASSETS (  53,12.1} (  90,074:

BUILDING SUPPORT 86,000 85,000

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT
DONOR RESTRICTIONS 32,879 {  5.074!

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Public support
Restrictions satisfied by use
Investment return
Distributions

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR
RESTRICTIONS

572,255
(  658,255)

2,872
{  5,178)

(  88,306)

463,090
(  548,090:

9, 338
(  5,105:

(  80,76?:

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (  55,427) (  85,841:

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year 5,896,370 5,982,211

NET ASSETS, End of year S  .5^a.4.0,_943 $  5,896,370

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended June 30,

.  2019 2018

Program General Fund-

Services and Admin Raising Total Total

Management salaries $  43,991 $  128,293 S 25,575 $  197,859 S 239,783

Salaries and wages 574,931 28.120 56,074 659,125 586,933

Employee benefits 103,515 28,841 1,002 133,358 117,697

Payroll taxes 50,992 11,249 4, 568 66,809 67,000

Professional'fees 2,434 14,108 - 16,542 16,662

Bad debt 1,110 - 5, 347 6. 457 2,975

Advertising and promotion - - 2, 205 2,206 2, 903

Office and administration 10,653 27,600 10,387 48,640 49,150

Heat 26,747 3,592 999 31,338 19,988

Electricity 31,196 I, 648 1,747 34,591 35,301

Water and sewer 28,331 1,179 1, 178 30,688 27,948

Repairs and maintenance 91,902 1, 844 4,871 98,616 97,404

Interest 31,606 704 704 33,014 14,083

Insurance 28,572 1, 596 1,587 31,755 31,747

Food 26,130 - - 26,130 37,063

Direct services 234,894 -
- 234,894 217,139

Telephone 4,245 6, 667 1,212 12,124 10,106

Volunteer development 81 7, 650 - 7,731 2,926

Staff and program development 7,434 2,788 - 10,222 8,260

TOTALS BEFORE DEPRECIATION

AND AMORTIZATION 1,298,764 265,879 117,456 1,682,099 1,585,068

Depreciation and amortization 146,800 9,161 7,712 163,673 155,727

TOTALS S s $  1,845,772 $ 1, 740.7^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS POADS HOUSE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from public support
Cash received from investment return

Cash paid to employees and suppliers
Gash paid for interest

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net unrealized investment gain
Cash paid for property and equipment

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from borrov;ings
Cash paid for debt reduction

Net increase (decrease) in cash

Cash at beginning of year

CASH AT END OF YEAR

$  1,663,854

48,828

( 1,649,904)

(  33,014)

29,764

19,276

19,276

24,078)

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ( 24,078)

24,962

296,061

$  1,410,801

64,021

(1,524,091)

(  13,361)

62,630)

39,988

{  454,596)

(  414.608)

625,000

(  211,979}

413,021

(  64,217)
360,278

321.023 $ 296.061

The accompanying notes are an integral part, of these financial statements.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, IMC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Years Ended June 30,

2019 2018

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Decrease in net assets $( 55,<527) S( 85, 841)

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash from operating activities;

Net unrealized investment gain ( 19,276) ( 39,988)
Depreciation expense 162,009 155,522
Amortization expense 1,664 205

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable ( 1,102) ( 1,457}

Grants receivable 1,173 { 58,117)
Unconditional promises to give 58,397 48,600
Prepaid expenses ( 53,081) 9,435
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 2,307 ( 4,233)
Cash and cash equivalents, operating reserve 186 ( 1,288)
Cash and marketable securities, long-term reserve ( 79,790) ( 84,441).

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable 6,139 13,618
Security deposits-Greenleaf Apartments 6,728

Deferred income ( 15,000) ( 16,449}
Accrued payroll items 14, 837 11, 804

Total adjustments 85,191 23,211

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 29.764 S( 62^630)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUMTIMG POLICIES

Organization

Cross Roads House, Inc. (Cross Roads House), was organized March 24, 1982, but
was essentially activated January 1, 1984. The purpose of the organization is to
provide safe and supportive emergency and transitional shelter to individuals and
families experiencing homelessness in southeastern New Hampshire.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to ma)<e estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Cross Roads House received a letter of determination dated July 28, 1986 from the
Internal Revenue Service advising it that it qualified as a non-profit
organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore,
it is not subject to income tax. Cross Roads House is classified as other than a
private foundation.

Financial Starement Presentation

Cross Roads House reports information regarding its financial position and
activities according to two classes of net assets: net assets with donor-
restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions. The Organization accounts
for contributions as either with or withouc donor restrictions depending on the
existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions upon
satisfaction of the time or purpose of the restriction.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements all non-custodial highly liquid
investments with an initial maturity of less than three months or investments
with a per share value constant at one dollar are considered to be cash
equivalents. Cash equivalents were $148,835 and $126,8.04 as of June 30, 2019 and
2018.

. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the State in support of
homeless operations. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding accounts
receivable at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 management
considers accounts receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allov/ance
for doubtful accounts is required.



CROSS ROADS HOUSE, IMC.

NOTES TO riNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE A - SUMMARY OE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Accounting
Income and expenses are reported on the accrual basis, which means that income is
recognized as it is earned and expenses are recognized as they are incurred
whether or not cash is received or paid out at that time.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 16, 2019 the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Promises to Give/Contributions

Cross Roads House accounts for contributions without donor restrictions and with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor
restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions upon satisfaction of the time or purpose restrictions.
An allowance for uncollectible unconditional promises is established based on
historical experience and management's evaluation of outstanding unconditional
pledges at the end of each year. As of June 30, 2019, management considers all
pledges to be fully collectible.

All unconditional promises to give are current and consist of the following, as
of June 30,

Capital campaign
Wentworth Gala event

TOTALS

2019

135,678

S  135,678

2018

66,000

108,075

5 194.075

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Organization's investments ^as of June 30, 2019 are stated at fair value.
Shares of the separate investment accounts are valued at quoted market prices,
which represent the net value of shares held by the Organization at year-end.
Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest

income is recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-

dividend date. As of June 30, 2019, investments have a market value of 5963, 717,
cost basis of 5944,441 and unrealized gains of 519,276.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost for those items which have been
purchased, and at estimated fair market value for those items v/hich have been
donated. The cost of buildings and improvements is recovered using Che straight-
line method over estimated useful lives of 10 to 33 years. The cost of furniture,
fixtures and equipment is recovered using Che straight-line method over estimated
useful lives of 2 to 1 years. Property and equipment as of June 30, 2019
consisted of the following:

Land and improvements S 217,266
Buildings and improvements 6,065,715
Furniture and equipment 189,602
Total property and equipment 6,472,583
Less accumulated depreciation 1, 701,060

Property and equipment, net 5 523

Donated Services

Contributions of services are recognized in the financial statements if the
services enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills., are
provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. For the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, there were no amounts for donated services.

Donated Materials

Donated marketable securities and property and equipment are valued at fair
market value. Marketable securities are immediately sold and are included in the
statement of activities as donations. Donated securities were received and valued

as follows during the years ended Ju.ne 30,
2019 2018

Marketable securities $ 34,564 $ 31,970

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS

Cross Roads House is a beneficiary of an agency endowment fund at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution

establishing this fund, property contributed to The Nev/ Hampshire Charitable.
.Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the benefit of Cross Roads
House. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions
from the fund to Cross Roads House. The distributions are 4.031 of the market

value of the fund per year.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE B - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS (continued)

Activity in this endowment fund consisted of the following for the years ended
June 30,

2019 2018

Beginning, fair value, 7/1 S 134, 758 5 13.0, 525
Total return 3,778 10,227
Foundation fee { 907) ( 889)
Distributions ( 5,173) ( 5,105)
Ending, fair value, 6/30 5 132,451 S 134,758

Distributions represent amounts distributed to Cross Roads House and are shown as
unrestricted dividends.

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

Cross Roads House records its marketable securities with readily determinable
fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values in the
statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the
change in net assets, in the statement of activities.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets
measured at fair value.

Common stocks, corporate bonds and U.S. government securities: Valued at
the closing price reported oh the active market on which the individual
securities are traded.

Mutual funds:. Valued at the net asset value of shares held by the plan at
year end.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be
indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.

Furthermore, while the Organization believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine fair value of certain financial
instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting
date.

The Organization reports under the Fair Value Measurements, which establishe.d a
framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
inactive markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and

the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE C - INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE (continued)

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the
ability to access.

Investments, all at level 1, at fair value as of consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Cash & equivalents S 148,835 $ 126,804

Domestic equities 531,565 369,057

Domestic fixed income 283,317 271,664

Incernational fixed income - 116,588

TOTALS S 963,717 S 684,113

NOTE D - ACCRUED PAYROLL ITEMS

Accrued payroll items consisted of the following as ■ of the years

30,
2019

Payroll and payroll taxes S 20,194

Earned time 47,173

Totals $ 67,367

2018

$  4,382

48,146

$

NOTE E - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Cross Roads House receives money under various state and federal grants.
Under the terms of these grants, Cross Roads House is required to use the
money within the grant period for purposes specified in the grant proposal.
If expenditures of the grant were found not to have been made in compliance
with the proposal, Cross Roads .House may be required to repay the grantor's
funds.

NOTE F - LINE OF CREDIT

The organization has established a $300,000 line of credit with Provident
Bank with a current interest rate of 5.25%. The interest rate is directly
tied to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate with no margin. Accordingly, any
changes to this rate will change the organization's line of credit rate.
There was no outstanding balance as of June 30, 2019;
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (C0^3TI^7UED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

NOTE G - LONG-TERM DEBT

Current Long-term Total

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $1,293, 4.69% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
August 2037. $ 6,832 $181,684 $188,516

Note payable. Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $2,070, 5.62% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
March 2038. 8,982 277,439 286,421

Note payable, Provident Bank, monthly
payment is $942, 6.29% interest; secured
by property and equipment; note matures
May 2038. 3,673 120,421 124,094

Note payable, NH Community Development
Authority, monthly payment is $443, 2.00%
interest; secured by property; note
matures November 2019. 2,202 2,202

Total long-term debt $ 21.689 $ 579.544 $ .6^1^_233

Future principal loan payments are as follows for the years ended,

June 30, 2020 $ 21,689
202 1 20,571

202 2 21,715

202 3 22,924

202 4 24,200

Thereafter. . . 490,134

NOTE H - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

As of June 30, 2019, Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by a bank that
is insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation for $250,000, any
amount in excess is fully covered by the Massachusetts Depositors Insurance
Fund.

Cross Roads House has a cash balance held by an investment brokerage firm
that is insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation.

Cross Roads House derived 34% of its operating revenue from government
agencies.
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CROSS ROADS HOUSE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

MOTE I - GREENLEAF APARTMENTS

Cross Roads House purchased a 12-unit single room occupancy building in
Portsmouth, NH in April 2018. Applicants must meet certain requirements as
defined in a Tenant Selection Plan to qualify for these low-income units.
Rental income was $94,981 and rental expenses totaled $81,331 for the year
ended June 30, 2019. Rental expenses are included in the statement of
functional expenses as program expenses.

NOTE J - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

As part of Cross Roads House's liquidity management, it has a policy to
structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures,
liabilities and other obligations come due. In addition, the organization
invests cash in excess of daily requirements in short-term investments. To
help manage unanticipated liquidity needs, the organization has a committed
line of credit in the amount of $300,000, which it could draw upon. The
organization also has a Board designated reserve of $963,717. Although, the
organization does not intend to spend from its reserve other than amounts
appropriated for general expenditure as part of its annual budget approval
and appropriation process, amounts from its reserve could be made available
if necessary.
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Name Afniialion* Committees
Term

Began

Term

Ends

Adams. MicliacI Archilecl Building 2016 2022

AIILson. Tim CCSNII Development 2012 2022

Bellmarc. Chris
Arista Networks

TBD 2020 2022

Brcsclte. Suzanne Stratogi Partners E.xeculivc. Program. Dcs'clopmcnt 2007 2022

Brown. Bob Treasurer Self employed/consultant Finance 201 1 2020

Campbell. I;ric Bottomline Technologies. Inc. Program 2015 2021

Clouticr. Denis CSNM Program. Building 2012 2022

Cohen. Ken Psychiatrist Program 2013 2022

Dillon. Denis Mel.ane Middleton Nominating & Gova-nancc. Development 2004 2021

Drew. Kathryn
Merrill Lynch Wealth Management/Bank of
America Corp.

Nominating & Governance 1999 2021

Goddard. Sieve Retired Development 2019 2021

Martindale. Viran Retired Program 2006 2022

Maihews. Shaun Retired Finance. Program 2019 2021

Moore. Vanda

Secretary
Spnigue l:nergy E.xecutive. Development 2013 2022

Seourby. Le.x Chicken of the Sea I'rozen Foods
Executive. Finance. Nominating &

Governance. Development
2003 2021

Silva. Chuck Vice

President
Albany International. Corp. Executive. Nominating & Governance 2015 2021

St. Jean. Ben President Clipper Strategic Consulting. LLC E.xecutive. Finance. Building 2015 2021

Tiemey. Gillian Unigucst. Inc.
TBD 2020 2022

Worboys. Mary l.ec Retired Program 201 1 2020



Martha E. Stone

EXPERIENCE

7/13 - present Executive Director. Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

Chief executive of 96+ bed not-for-profit homeless shelter. Oversee and manage annual
budget of SI .5M and shelter operations. Maintain relationships with state and municipal
authorities, and ensure regulatory compliance. Manage federal, state, municipal and private
grant solicitations, contract compliance, and reporting. Direct fundraising activities and
supervise development staff. Provide executive-level advocacy with medical, social service,
and government agencies.

1/04-7/13 Development Director. Cross Roads House, Portsmouth, NH

Raise $600,000+ annually to support shelter operations. Responsible for planning and
implementing all fundraising activities including individual and corporate giving, direct rnail
appeals, special events, corporate & foundation grants, and planned giving. Oversee volunteer
activities, donor database management, and gift processing. Plan and execute donor stewardship
activities and events. Design and produce marketing materials. Represent organization at
community events and manage public relations activities. Work closely with Board of Directors
to set and achieve fundraising goals. From 2007- 2009 managed a $5M capital campaign to fund
the design and construction of a new shelter facility.

7/94-1/04 Co-Owner. Stone Signs & Designs, Portsmouth, NH

Manage all financial records including accounts payable and receivable; involved in strategic
planning and goal setting; created and maintained customer database.

7/94-1/04 Co-Owner and Propcrn- Manager. Stone Properties, Greenland, NH

Own and operate multiple residential and commercial properties in the Seacoast; maintain
financial records including accounts payable and receivable, schedule and coordinate all aspects
of maintenance for buildings, interview and process all tenant applications; handle tenant needs.

3/92-6/94 Marketing Manager. Healthsource, Concord, NH

Supervised staff of eleven; oversaw the servicing and retention of over 400 accounts by closely
monitoring all account renewal activities; created marketing strategies to increase annual
membership; designed and developed service program including manuals for client use; trained
new Account Managers in all aspects of the position including: negotiating, presentation skills,
and conflict resolution; regularly conducted presentations for clients explaining health benefits
and policy changes.

10/89-3/92 Marketing Representative, Healthsource, Concord, NH

Accountable for renewing and retaining 75 accounts; executed enrollment activities by:
gathering underwriting data, presenting benefit plans to both employers and employees in group
settings, and negotiating annual contracts; sold health insurance products to new employers.

3/89-10/89 Marketing Representative. Beacon Health, Greenland, NH



Serviced existing accounts by coordinating enrollment activities including: developing annual
rates, conducting group presentations, and designing marketing materials; sold HMO product to
employer groups; actively participated in management team meetings; supervised administrative
assistant.

5/87-3/89 Marketing Assistant. Hardenburgli-Marks Inc., Boston, MA

Imported and marketed high end gift merchandise; supervised public relations activities;
designed and produced literature for new products; prepared for and traveled to trade shows;
sold directly to buyers; provided customer service to retail clients.

EDUCATION

COMPUTER

SKILLS

Bachelor of Arts. Communications: May 1987
Boston College. Chestnut Hill, MA Honors: Magna Cum Laude

Temple Universitv. London, England
Spring Semester Abroad, Communications and Theater Program 1986

Word, Excel, PowerPoint. Outlook, Constant Contact, Raiser's Edge fundraising software

COMMUNITY

INVOLVEMENT

9/17-present NH Governor's Interagencv Council on Homelcssness. Concord, NH
2/17-prescnt Housing Action NIL Governing Council, Concord, NH
5/I4-prescnt Balance of State Continuum of Care. Executive Committee Co-Chair, Concord, NH
7/I2-present Greater Seacoast Coalition to End Homelessness. Steering Committee, Portsmouth, NH
3/08-present Seacoast Half Marathon. Committee Member, Portsmouth, NH
2/04- 3/15 Greenland Central School. School Board Member, Greenland, NH
9/ 00-6/03 Greenland Central School Parent Organization. President & VP, Greenland, NH
1998-99 Mothers & More. Co-Leader, Portsmouth, NH
1998-99 Seacoast Parenting Conference. Fundraising & Hospitalitj'Committees, Portsmouth, NH



Susan Darling Duchesney

Experience 2002-Current

Finance Director Cross Roads House

Manage accounting including payroll, government reporting and
audit preparation as \A/ell as human resources functions for major
seacoast nonprofit.

Education

1996- Current AA Associates Portsmouth, NH

Accounting Consultant

Manage small business accounting in various industries. Types of
businesses include construction, property management, restaurants,
athletic clubs, and personal service corporations.

Consult with clients regarding budgeting, corporate development,
general operations, and equity analysis.

Set up and provide technical assistance on Quickbooks systems.

Prior to 1996-

Fiscai Director of major nonprofit organizations
including North Shore Elder Services. Preterm Clinic, Manchester

VNA and the Seacoast YWCA.

Adjunct Faculty at Seacoast Colleges including Granite State College
and Southern NH University

1991 Passed all parts of the CPA exam

2009 Graduate Certificate in Fraud Examination

2005 Southern New Hampshire University
M.S. in Accounting

1990 Mclntosh College
A.A. in Accounting (3.9 average)

1973-1975 University of NH,
graduate work in business administration

1964 University of NH
B.A in History cum laude

Honors &

Affiliations

Skills

References

CPA candidate(test passed, absence of public accounting experience)
Associate member of AlCPA

Certified Fraud Examiner, Member of ACRE

Excel, Quickbooks, most accounting software and 1040 tax software

Available upon request



SANDRA L. BEAUDRY

Licensed Marriage and Family Therapist, NH #22

EDUCATION

Master of Science, December, 1992 Bachelor of Science, September, 1987
Marriage and Family Therapy Human Sen'ices
University of New Hampshire University of Southern New Hampshire

CLINICAL AND SOCIAL SERVICE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE

CROSS ROADS HOUSE

Portsmouth, NH Januaiy 2014 to present
Program Director

•  Supervise Shelter and Community-Based Clinical Case Management program
•  Responsible for enhancement of programming to support residents physical and emotional well-being, self-sufficiency, and

move to peniianent housing

•  Establish inter-agency partnerships
•  Seek diverse flinding, including government and private grants and the provision of reimbursable services
•  Identify and meet direct and clinical service staff training needs

CHILD AND FAMIL Y SER VICES

Manchester, Concord, Portsmouth, NH Fehruaty 1997 to January 2014
Procram Director October 2008 to Januarv

2014

Program Leadership and Supenusion
•  Directed statewide counseling and adolescent/young adult substance abuse treatment programs and a federally-funded

mentoring/family support program for youth being released from the Sununu Youth Services Center (joint project with
Goodwill of NNE)

•  Supervised 14 direct report clinical staff and two interns
•  Supported implementation of Trauma-Focuscd Cognitive Behavioral Therapy and trauma-informed care
•  Provided supervision and clinical support to the Seacoast Street Outreach Program mental health clinician and oversaw the

mental health subcontract with the Healthcare for the Homeless program at Families First
•  Developed and maintain procedure manuals for counseling and substance abuse treatment programs
•  Oversaw quality assurance of clinical records and implementation of evidence-based practices
•  Developed, monitored and maintained program budgets that have ranged from a total of $l million to $1.4 million annually
•  Supervised and coordinated the statewide CFS Deployment Cycle Support Program, whieh provided home-based counseling

and support to military service members and their families before, during, and after deplo>'ment, through a subcontract with
Easter Seals

•  Directed the Family Intervention Program, state-contracted barrier-resolution services for TANF recipients in the New
Hampshire Employment Program across the state, including four sub-contracts with Family Resource Centers

•  Provided administrative and clinical support to Healthy Marriage Responsible Fatherhood federal grant project serving
fathers in the state prison system and their families

Grants and Contracts

•  Managed or co-managed four multi-year federal grants from SAMHSA, OJJDP, and ACF, including data collection and
reporting, continuation applications, annual progress reports, and no-cost e.xtension requests

•  Managed state contracts with BDAS, DOC, and DFA, including proposal writing and submission, data collection and
reporting, and budget development

•  Wrote or contributed to grant proposals to foundations, including grants received from Peoples United Bank for Seacoast
office-based family counseling and Healthcare Gives for mobile mental health ser\'ices in the Street Outreach Program

•  Developed proposals and received funding from United Way agencies across the state
•  Wrote proposals to municipalities, including the city of Portsmouth, and presented to town selectman or budget meetings
•  Facilitated agency contracts with managed care companies for counseling and substance abuse treatment services and the

credentialing of CFS clinical staff
•  Provided the CFS agency administrator function for WITS, the web-based treatment, data, pay-for-performance, and billing

center for Access to Recovery and BDAS treatment contracts



Board and Communily Involvement
•  Served as the staff liaison to the CFS Seacoast Regional Advisory Board, facilitating monthly meetings and their work in

fundraising, including the RiverWoods Gala and the Lonza golf tournament
•  Facilitated a multi-disciplinary advisory board for the CFS Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment program with

representatives from prevention, treatment, school and juvenile justice ser\'ice providers
•  Represented CFS on the following boards; New Hampshire Alcohol and Other Drug Sen'ice Providers Association, Health

First (Laconia and Franklin), and Community Resource Network (Seacoast)
•  Serve as Board Secretary and Conference Registrar for the New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health
•  Arranged professional conferences in ethics and motivational interviewing for CFS and communily clinical/social work staff

Program Manager June 2007 to October 2008
Managed Family Intervention Program
Marriage and Family Therapist Februaiy 1997 to June 2007
Provided assessment and psychotherapy services to individuals, couples and families in a variety of Seacoast area settings, including
community-based therapy to individuals and families experiencing homelessness or housing insecurity in conjunction with the
Healthcarefor the Homeless program, consuluition to Community Child Care Center, and critical incident response with the state
Disaster Behavioral Health Response Team. Served on the board of SeaCare Health Scirices for nine years as the mental health
representative.

COMMI/NITY PARTNERS

Rochester, NH
Home-Based Clinician '992 to Februaiy 1997
Provided home-based family therapy, case management, and provider consultation services to multi-problem families in Strafford
County. Taught Child Impact seminar for divorcing parents.

RESIDENTIAL AND CASE MANAGEMENT EXPERIENCE IN DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Service Coordinator October 19SS to August 1991
Provided service coordination and individual support to developmentally disabled adults and their families.
Merrimack Valley Case Management Team. Mass. Dept. of Mental Retardation. Haverhill, M.A
Case Manager 1987 to September 1988
Obtained and coordinated community services for developmentally disabled adults.
One Sky. Portsmouth, NH
Coordinator of Community Residences December 19SA to .April 1987
Supervised the operation of four licensed community residences for developmentally disabled adults
Group Home Coordinator Februaiy 1983 to
December 1984

Established and managed group home for four deinstitutionalized men.
Sullivan County Developmental Sen-ices. Claremont. NH
Assistant Residential Program Supervisor March 1982 toJanuaiy 1983
ACCESS. Consholiocken. PA
Resident Manager November 1980 to March 1982
River Crest Center. Mont Clare. PA

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIP AND EDUCATION

Clinical Member and Approved Superxisor, American Association of Marriage and Family Therapy
Adjunct Professor January 2013 to May 2015
Spring Semester Marriage and Family Therapy Graduate Practicum, University of New Hampshire
Teaching Assistant September 1991 to May 1992
Introduction to Human Development course, University of New Hampshire



Cross Roads House, Inc.

Key Personnel for CRH/CCEH Permanent Supponive Housing Expansion

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Martha Stone Executive Director 100,000 0 0

Susan Duchesney Finance Director 49,920 0 0

Sandra Beaudry Program Director 68,078 1.3 8930



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Christine L Ssntanicllo
Director
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301
603-271.9474 1-800-S52.3345 ExL 9474

Fox: 603-271-4230 TOO Access: I-SOO-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 27, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
and Supportive'Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program in an amount not to exceed $668,260, effective August 1, 2019, or upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later, through July 31. 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Project
Name

Vendor # Location
SFY 2020

Amount

SFY 2021

Amount

Total

Amount

Cross Roads

House. Inc.

Permanent

Supportive
Housing,
Expansion
Program

177203-8003

Eastern

Rockingham,
Strafford &

Merrimack

Counties

$351,102 $31,918 $383,020

The Mental

Health Center for

Southem New

Hampshire dba
CLM Center for

Life Management

Shelter

Plus Care 1,
Permanent

Housing
Program

174116-R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$261,470 $23,770 $285,240

Total 612,572 55,688 $668,260

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020, and are anticipated
to be available in SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM .

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Numt>er Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $612,572

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $55,688

Total $668,260



His Excellency." Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because ̂federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date'of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The attached agreements represent two (02) of thirty (30) total agreements, many .of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughout the slate
to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing sen/ices through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care
Program.

The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services targeted to serve a minimum of fifty-three (53) participants from August 1, 2019 through July 31,
2020.

Using the "Housing First' model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream" services to maximize participant's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes;

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

•  An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

•  Annual compliance reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
or outreachysupportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in
the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required by
law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information
System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of each of these contracts, the Department reserves the right to
extend each agreement for up to two (02) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests, Permanent Housing,
and Supportive Services for New Hampshire homeless individuals and families may not be available in
their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region's local
welfare authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families to become homeless.

Source of funds; 100% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development. Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

Area served: Rockingham, Strafford & Merrimack Counties; a minimum of fifty-three (53)
individuals will be served.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Deparlnient of Health and Hmnan Services' Mission is to join comnuiniiies and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER PO? (version 5/8/15)
Subject; Continuum of Care. CRH/CCEH Permanent Supoonivc Housing Expansion Program. SS»2020-BHS-04-Perma-07

Notice: This agrcemeni end all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually ayec as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I. I State Agency Name
NH Depanmeni of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Cross Roods House, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

600 Lafayette Road
Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-436-2218

1.6 Account Number

05-95^2-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

July 31,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$383,020

1.9 Contracting OfTiccr for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. 11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

r"

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stale of /\) H , County of

On ^*1, ZD\^ , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person id<
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1 . 1 1, and acknowledged that s/he ext
indicated in block 1.12.
.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

fScal]

or^l^actorily
jd this docomcnt in th^c^acity

^ % • - ^

.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

«e Agency iture

1.16 Approval by ritf .1\H. Department ol Admini!

By:

L15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory pv

Daielj 1"?
AdministMtion, Division of Personnel (//applicable)

9ii§>
Director, On:

17 Approval by t)>^Anomey General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By:^ . // On:

.18 Approval 6^ the Goyefn/r and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By; On:

Page 1 of4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identined in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics
hcrcunder, shall become cffcciive on the date the Governor

and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become efTectivc on the date the
Agreement is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTcctive Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not ,
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hcrcundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 In the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price,' method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which Is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price. '
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

• 5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with oil statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No, 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor ftirther agrees to
permit the State or United States access io any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions pf this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and-shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months afier the
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined enbrt to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Stale
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agrccmcnl. This provision shall survive icrmination of this
Agrccmenl.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the '
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, efTcciivc two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Controctor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

preservation.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papen, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that puri>ose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H: RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
OfTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the pcrformanec of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNM ENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed'to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the Stale, which immunity is hereby
reserved to (he State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against alt
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI .OOO.OOOpcr occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor Initials

Date



14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting OfTtccr
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificaicCs)
of insurance for all inisurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTlcer
idcniificd in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certif>catc(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificaieCs) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. .Each cenincate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Conu^cting Officer idenlined in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensafion ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee lo.secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the Slate to enforce each and all of the ,
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the pan of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post OfTtcc addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provision-s of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional-provisions set
forth in the anached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which ihay
be executed in a number ofcounterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program

1. Provisions Aoplicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed deswiption of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into, the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit.I for Privacy
requirements.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies' who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

CRH/CCEH PSH Expansion ExMbit A Contractor IniUals
SFYs 2020-2021
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-07 Paga 1 of 5 Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HQPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program delivering
scattered-site, long-term, tenant-based, rental assistance and supportive services to at least
twenty-eight (28) chronically homeless (CH) and disabled adults in Eastern Rockingham,
Stratford, and Merrimack Counties, and which includes but is not limited to;

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not irhposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Sen/ices is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish 'at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that Includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1, The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a.victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further doniestic violence, dating violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a
friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written

• observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, Including
emails, votcemails. text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e!g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant" third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's Intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Particioant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year'and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must" keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with;

2.4.1. The Oraanizatlona! conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements in 24.CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the persona) conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain docurnentation of compliance with:

2.6.1.\ The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g):

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furtherino Fair Housino by maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable;

2.6.5. Other Records Soecified by HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Reouirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
•  shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the

operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
witii State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

CRH/CCEH PSH Expansion Exhibit A Contractor Mlisls
SFYi 2020-2021

SS-2020-eHS-04-PERMA-07 Pago 4 of S Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports;

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report fAPRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In .particular how the Contractor Is carrylng. out the project in the manner
proposed In the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall Inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined In 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
In accordiance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined in Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Up to eighty-five percent (85%) of participants remain-in permanent housing (PH) as of the
end of the operating year;

6.2.1.2. Ninety percent (90%) of participants, age eighteen (18) years and older, maintain or
Increase their total income at the end of the operating year or program exit.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and In consideration of the salisfaclory
compietion of the services to be perfonned under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Sen/ices, the State agrees.to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds; 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0095L1T001803

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Permanent Supportive Housing Expansion

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2-.7.1. August 1. 2019-July 31. 2020, nottoexceed $383,020

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services; $68,354

1.2.8.2. Rental Assistance: $305,736

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $8.930

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $383,020

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $97,988

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared In accordance
- with 2 CFR part 200,.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the compietion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301
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2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions," within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bvthe State

3.1. Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term "Project Costs" shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Project, Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from lime to
time, and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State., Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities In a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87{c].

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in'24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 57,8.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated In Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XtV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act), Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
-and time period not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for

•  the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B..
all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

;

housinQSUDDortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.QOv

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Sen/Ices, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it.shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or If the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and 6, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, arid to adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense EllqIblHtv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Contiriuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit 8 from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Operatino Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Furniture and equipment.

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
.  the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
participant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. including
providing meals and snacks, and cornprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer instruction, on-the-job instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring learning skills, and/or
increasing eaming potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. . Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program, participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible; ■

.  5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(i5) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless Individual or family's ability'
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost, during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed Items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling: individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

'5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15); ^
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) - (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subredpient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional licensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who'is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating

' assistance through other federal, State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent'may be provided to the landlord, In addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and-maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based,
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subrecipients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re^Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, • nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The (eases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through.578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring'and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
- engage in program admiriistration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
include the following: ytytil/O
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against staled objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. atx}ve. Exhibit 8.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, including such sen/ices as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-

^  Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and
5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of earring out the environmental review

responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organi2ation(s), or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. . Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
in the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, and management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas, and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount hot to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord in

■  addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy-agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(b)(8).

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determined fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot tease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing Is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.

\
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, p3r1<ing, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Manaoemont System

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Tlmo and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shad include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regardirig eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that ail applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sut>Contfactor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wi!) be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or-for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate

which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such, service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to Ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment .
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates .charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established: .
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementln

excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: fVIAINTEl^ANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Malr>tenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all
Income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers-, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions arid orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3.. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133i "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions. Issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the Unlte'd States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records.maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. 'Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not In any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, It is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: Alt information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shaii survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statisticai: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefoliowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim Hnanciai reports containing a detaiied description of

ali costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shaii be deemed satisfactory by the Department to.
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shaii be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of. the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: Ali documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefoliowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: Ali materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shaii not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shaii comply with ali laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility, if any governmental license or
permit shaii be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ali times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shaii
comply with ail rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaiand
the local fire protection agency, and'shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations. r

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP); The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more empfoyees, it wiil maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): /ks clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for.Enhancoment of Contractor Employee Whistloblower Protections: The
following shall apply to ail contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees worlclng on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in Ihe pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
■112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights'and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors; DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate ^

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

MflVII
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions;

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect Items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, njles and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to prov[de to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE l_AW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
. policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS; Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract'wIII not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, Conditional Nature of Aoreement. Is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder. Including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, In whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction,' termination or
modification. The State shall not be .required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.'

1.2. Section 10, Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate, 30 days after giving, the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within. 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for sen/ices under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to rrieet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having sen/ices delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in 'its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Idenlified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the ConlractoVs representative, as iderilified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fojiov/ing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARtMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D: 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a'drug-free workplace. Section 3017.63C(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact iipoh which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing,, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
^  coriviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or othen^vlse receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1.' Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2. 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site{s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: 0lO$.3 UsiM,

Datfe 7 Name: ~
Title:

Exhibit 0 - CaniHcation regarding Drug Free Vendor Inltisle
Workplace Requirements
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community'Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or coopefalive agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sut>-
conlractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed svhen this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: Oo55 Rdad}

Dat Name:

Title:

Exhibit E - Certification Rogardirtg Lobbying Vendor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's '
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certiflcation required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanatiofi will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services" (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant-shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will .include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modincation. in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of'its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regenjing Debarment, Suspension Ver>dor InKisIs
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction.with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criniinal offense in
V connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or .

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

VendorName: (>5-55 KOads

Nafhe: r-4-t-.
Title:

Exhibit F - CertiTtcatiorv Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension Vendor Initials
And Other Responsibility Metiers «
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identiHed in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will compi/ and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute, from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Erriployment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, (he civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and 'sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Seclion 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Oepartrnent of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and WhistJeblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below (s a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certincation or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G

Vendor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient vrill forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Offtce of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

VendorName:

■Si
Datd I Name:

Title:

Ej^ibti G
Vendor IniUflls

C«'VAeMon ol C«mpll«re* wttA paruMnQ to NendlaeMnKion. Equil Tiaainwni o( ratm Bwd Or^anlzAaon*
•ndWN»at«9«wpf«(Kten» .

VZJIU

Rr>. 10/21/14 Pdfie 2 Of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C ■ Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the sen/ices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition' of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: ffSV-ti., Xko

Op Ui/n ■
Title:

Ej^itx't H - Cartiflcatlon ReoartHng Vendor Initials
Environmental ToImcco ̂ oke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered Entity"
shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Desionated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreoation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

). 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by '
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Initiait
. Health Insurance Portsbility Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Deparlment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary"shall mean the Secretary of the Deparlment of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing orgar}ization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenArise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors. ofTtcers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (I)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity ot:>jects to such disclosure, the BusinessBusines^

3/2014 Exhibit I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions an'd shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected •
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall compleie the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

6. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be recei^g ̂ 1

3/2014 Exhibit I V®ndof inlUais
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions {P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information. .

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
' obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity'to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45.CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes.that make the return or destruction Infeasible, for so long as Busines^ p

3/2014 Exhibit I Vendor Inillats
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164;520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect-Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a .breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,

shall.have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reiference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA-, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security

3/2014 Exhibit I Vandor
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Seareaatlon. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition: to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services "R OQ^S 'hi
Name of the Vendor

'4Signature of AulhcH^d Representative Signature of Authonzed Representative

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

((hi/H
Date ( ^

Title of Authonzed Representative

Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of indlviduai
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAiCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique idenlJfier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Sen/ices and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

Vendor Name: (^V155

Date' I Name: ,S-fDrv<_

Exhibit J - Ceniricstion Regarding (he Federal Funding Vendor Initials
Accountability Arxl Transparency Act (FFATA) CompSance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, i certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: ]1I 77 V ̂7^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

if the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

cuDHwiions

Exhibit i - Cflftincstion Regarding (he Federal Fufxfing Verxlor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. WHh regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" .means all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and

Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owried or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but Is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card.lndustry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder. \

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or rnisplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

vs. Last up^ta 10/09/16 Ej^ibtlK Contractor Initiab
DHHS InformaUon
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Slate of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:l9. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must,not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last upiJata 10/09/18 ExWbtt K Contractor Initisls
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Security Requirements
Page 2 of® Date,



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements ,

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions,over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of sucri additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

/

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this .Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption., If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used-and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting ServlceSi also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting iservices, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within'the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Lssl updstQ l(V09/18 Exhibit K Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing ah SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

II). RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide- security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

vs. Lost update 1009/16 ExhibitK Contracts Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

•2. Unless otherwise specified: v/ithin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Cont/actor Initial:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and. access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply witti all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the sun/ey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the t>oundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
.make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. LASt update 10/09/16 ^ Exhibit K Contractor Initiaia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS (nformatlon Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy^Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/lndex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer

' security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users;

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Ldstupdoie 10/09/18 E)d)ibilK Conirsctorinitisls
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duly hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as ■ determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor corhpliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in

-  Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Coniractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Oetermine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: i

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.90v

8. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care I, Permanent Supportive Housing

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Amendment #1
to the Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care I. Permanent Supportive Housing Contract

This 1'* Amendment to the Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care I, Permanent Supportive Housing
contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire.
Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire dba CLM Center for Life Management,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a non-profit corporation with a place of business at 10
Tsienneto Road. Derry, NH, 03038.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on July 31. 2019. (Item #23), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions'specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and
WHEREAS pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2., Renewal., the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and
WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
July 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$570,480.

3. Modify Exhibit 8, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.4, to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers NH0005L1T001810 (August 1. 2019 through July 31, 2020);
NH0014L1T001912 (August 1, 2020 - July 31, 2021)

4. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.7, by adding Subparagraph 1.2.7.2, to read:

1.2.7.2. August 1, 2020 - July 31, 2021, not to exceed $285,240

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1, Subsection 1.2,
Paragraph 1.2.8 to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program are as follows:
Augusti, August 1, Total

2019 through 2020 through Cumulative
July 31, 2020 July 31, 2021 Amount

Description

1.2.8.1 Rental Assistance;

1.2.8.2 Administrative Expenses:

1.2.8.3 Total Program Amount:

1.2.8.4 Vendor Match (25%):

$271,860

$13,380

$271,860

$13,380

$543,720

$26,760

$285,240

$71,310

$285,240

$71,310.

$570,480

$142,620

6. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #1, Budget Worksheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

The Mental Health Center for Southern
New Hampshire dba CLM Center for
Life Management
SS-202&-BHS-04-PERMA-05-A01

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care I, Permanent Supportive Housing

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to August, 1, 2020. upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

DaAe

Date

Name:
Christine ntanie lo

Title:
Director. DEHS

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
dba CLM Cemer for Life Management

Name: |//'C

The Mental Health Center for Southern
New Hampshire dba CLM Center for
Life Management

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-05-A01

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Shelter Plus Care I, Permanent Supportive Housing

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/06/20

Date Name:
Title" Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

The Mental Health Center for Southern Amendment #1
New Hampshire dba CLM Center for
Life Management

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-05-A01 Page 3 of 3



Shekec Pfca Can. Permtneni Supponiv* Hevilnt EihiM B-1, Amendmenl >1 Biid|et Sheet

The Mental Health Centei (or Southern New Harnpshire

dba CIM Center (or LKc Maita(ement

CoC Funds

Crant Number: NH0014L1T0019U SFY2021 - i/i/io-i/io/ii'
TOTAL PROGRAM COST CONTRACTOR SHARE BHSSHARE

m

1

z

1

1

BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY BUDGET YTO MONTHLY

Rental Asaiuartce 2<e20s s s s s - s S  -24«.20$ S • S
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

!, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State ofNew Hampshire, do hereby certify that THE MENTAL HEALTH
CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in
New Hampshire on April 17, 1967. i further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have
been received and is in good standing as far as this oRlcc is concerned.

Business ID: 61791

Ccnificaie Number: 0004891024

0/5- IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 13th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretaiy of State



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secrctar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CLM CENTER FOR LIFE
MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire Trade Name registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 30, 2003. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in good standing as far as
this office is concemed.

Business ID: 442328

Certificate Number: 0004888012

u.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 11th day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Susan Davis, Secretary, hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire; dba the
Center for Life Management.

2 The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on July 20th. 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

*Whereas, an executive stay at home order has been issued and in effect from Governor
Chris Sununu, this vote is entered electronically.

VOTED; That Vic Topo, CEO/President . .r.. ^ * 1

is duly authorized on behalf of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire; dba The Center for LifeManagement, to enter into contracts or agreements with the Stale
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any a^d all documents
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vole.

3 I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. 1 further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 112012020
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Susan Davis
Title: Secretary

My Commcsiloo Exp«BS April 5,20ZZ

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE [MkUOD/YYYY]

ISSUED AS A UATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING iNSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

'* additional INSURED, the pollcy(ios) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
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Our Mission 84 Vision

OUR MISSION

To promote the health and well-being of individuals, families and organizations.

We accomplish this through professional, caring and comprehensive behavioral health care services and

by partnering with other organizations that share our philosophy.

OUR VISION

Togctlier. we can evolve from being primarily a treatment focused beliavioral health organization to one

that values whole health and wellness.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
dA)/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates (a nonproft
organization), which are comprised of the consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30.
2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for (he Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are fVee from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibilit>' Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the ^nited States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk' assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienF^and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Hnancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Afilliates as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and i^ cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Stales of America.



Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the nnancial statements as a whole
The supplementary infonnation on pages 16-22 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the nnancial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to tlie auditing procedures applied m the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including compying and reconcilmg such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financia
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures m accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Covernntent Auditing Standards

In accordance with Goverr^ment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 17,
2019 on our consideration of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management and Affiliates internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on tlie
effectiveness of The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and Affiliates internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Tlie
Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b^ CLM Center for Life Management and
Affiliates internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 2 of the financial statements, in 2019, the organization adopted ASU 2016-14, Noi-
for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Nol-for'Profu Entities. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Essex Junction, Vermont

Registration number VT092.0000684
September 17, 2019

-2-
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements ofFinancia) Position

June 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  1,662,875 $  1,640,075

Accounts receivable, net 943,181 864,230

Other receivables 284,929 144,815

Prepaid expenses 93,768 80,753

Security deposit 11,087 11,087

Total current assets 2,995,840 2,740,960

Property and equipment, net 3,715,469 3,656,665

Other assets

Interest rate swap agreement 58,030 48,533

Total assets $ 6.769.339 $ 6.446.158

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long term debt S  93,538 S  88,538

Accounts payable 76,558 53,554

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 402,801 375,055

Accrued vacation 372,138 327,657

Accrued expenses 18,961 13,319

Deferred revenue 11,980 7,580

Total current liabilities 975,976 865,703

Long term liabilities

PMPM reserve 225.000 1 12,737

Long term debt, less current ponion 2,215,250 2,308,819

Total long term liabilities 2,440.250 2.421,556

Total liabilities 3,416,226 3,287,259

Net assets without donor restrictions 3,353,1 13 3,158,899

Total liabilities and net assets S 6.769.339 S 6.446J58

See notes to financial statements



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Public support and revenues:

Public support:

Federal

State of New Hampshire • BBH
State and local funding

Other public support

Total public support

Revenues:

Program service fees, net

Other service income

Rental income

Other

Gain on sale of assets

Total revenues

Total public support and revenues

Operating expenses:

BBH funded programs:

Children

Elders

Vocational

Multi-Service

Acute Care

Independent Living

Assertive Community Treatment

Non-Specialized Outpatient

Non-BBH funded program ser\'ices

Total program expenses

Administrative expenses

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operations
Non-ooerating expenses:

Fair value gain (loss) on interest rate swap
Change in net assets

Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year
Net assets without donor restrictions, end of year

$  893,941 $  1,005,755

258,681 316,921

43,601 43,602

224,837 131,172

1,421,060 1,497,450

13,076,818 12,364,822

647,329 467,403

5,188 4,985

158.841 39,231

10,000 -

13.898,176 12,876,441

15,319,236 14,373,891

5,157,438 4,859,070

501,342 282,131

266,091 234,156

2.971,434 2,609,377

932,42! 775,806

2,334.134 2,226,618

734,195 835,083

1,063,655 980,645

213,421 132,495

14,174,131 12,935,381

960,388 1,049,580

15.134,519 13,984,961

184,717 388,930

9,497 85,586

194,214 474,516

3,158,899 2.684.383

$ 3,353,1 13 $ 3,158,899

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D.'B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Functional Expenses
Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Program Program

Services Administrative Total Services Administrative Total

Personnel costs:

Salaries and wages $ 8,963,460 $  604,197 $ 9,567,657 $ 8,271,397 $  679,212 $ 8,950,609
Employee benefits 1,947,562 131,727 2,079,289 1,770,356 136,304 1,906,660
Payroll taxes 623,425 41,859 665,284 589,194 48,580 637,774

Accounting/audit fees 56,277 5,753 62,030 50,511 4,910 55,421
Advertising 32,756 3,376 36.132 18,548 2,626 21,174
Conferences, conventions and meetings 18,606 9,597 28,203 27,262 11,456 38,718
Depreciation 188,646 15,339 203,985 186,697 18,240 204,937
Equipment maintenance 34,553 2,524 37,077 14,183 1,385 15,568
Equipment rental 37,204 ,2,280 39,484 38,062 2,996 41,058
Insurance 73,278 5,836 79,114 64,120 6,898 71,018
Interest expense 101,605 8,264 109,869 96,382 9,417 105,799
Legal fees 25,302 1,890 27,192 43,606 4,071 47,677
Membership dues 45,470 6,663 52,133 48,330 8,218 56,548
Occupancy expenses 1,007,337 10,369 1,017,706 896,640 10,055 906,695
Office expenses 219,960 20,386 240,346 193,164 20,508 213,672
Other expenses 76,453 17,615 94,068 55,224 17,866 73,090
Other professional fees 378,017 57,890 435,907 273,798 55,732 329,530
Program supplies 156,066 12,646 168,712 84.240 8,943 93,183
Travel 188,154 2,177 190.331 213,667 2,163 215,830

14,174,131 960,388 15,134,519 12,935,381 1,049,580 13,984,961
Administrative allocation 960,388 (960.388) - 1,049,580 (1,049.580)

Total expenses 15,081,580 $ S 15,134,519 $ 13.984,961 $  - $ 13,984.961

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

■ Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 20)8

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase (decrease) in net assets $  194,214 $ 474,516

Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net

assets to net cash provided by operating activities:

• Depreciation 203,985 204,937

Amortization of loan origination fees included

in interest expense 18,930 18,929

Gain on sale of assets (10,000) ■

Fair value (gain) loss on interest rate swap (9.497) (85,586)

(Increase) decrease in;

Accounts receivable, net (78,951) 10,155

Other receivables (140,114) (28,652)

Prepaid expenses (13,015) 12,496

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 100,873 18,172

Deferred revenue 4,400 ■ -

PMPM reserve 112,263 112,737

Net cash provided by operating activities 383,088 737,704

Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from sale of assets 10,000 -

Purchases of property' and equipment (262,788) (52,938)

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (252.788) (52,938)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net principal payments on long term debt (107,500) (105,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (107,500) (105,000)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 22,800 579.766

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,640,075 1,060,309

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S  1,662,875 $ 1.640,075

SuDDlemenial cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid during the year for interest S  109.869 $ 105.799

See notes to financial statements
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note). Nature of organization

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampsliire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the "Agency") is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New Hampshire
law to provide services in the areas of mental health and related non-mental health programs.

During 2006, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the "Foundation") was
established to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the Agency. It
is affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management through common board members and management. In addition, the
Agency is the sole member.

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management and the Center for Life Management Foundation are collectively referred to the
"Organization".

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and the Center for Life
Management Foundation. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summarv of significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis,
revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred, without regard
to date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Accountingfor Contributions Received and
Contributions Made.

Basis of presentation

The Organization's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require the Organization to
report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following
net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of
the Organization. TTiese net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors,
and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be
met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions
to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities.



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization only had net assets without donor restrictions of
S3,353,113 and $3,158,899, respectively.

General

The significant accounting policies of the Organization are presented to assist in
understanding the Organization's financial statements. The financial statements and the notes
are representations of the Organization's management. The Organization is responsible for
the integrity and objectivity of the financial statements.

Use of estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the
estimates that were used.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management writes off accounts when they are deemed uncollectible and
establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated uncollectible amounts. The
Organization had an allowance for doubtful accounts of $242,758 and $224,548 as of June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Refer to Note 3 for additional discussion of accounts
receivable.

Property • j r •
Property is recorded at cost, except for donated assets which are recorded at estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed on the straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-40 years
Automobiles 3-15 years
Equipment 5-7 years

All equipment valued at $500 or more is capitalized. Expenditures for repairs and
maintenance arc expensed when incurred and bettennenls are capitalized. Assets sold or
otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts, along with the related accumulated
depreciation, and any gain or loss is recognized.

Depreciation expense was $203,985 and $204,937 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Finance costs

Financing costs are recorded on the statement of position net of accumulated amortization. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principle.s, the unamortized financing costs
are reported as a reduction in long term debt - see Note 7. The costs arc amortized over the
term of the respective financing arrangement.
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Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accoiintin& policies CcontinuedJ

Vacation pav and fringe benefits
Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of actual
time spent on programs.

Fair value measurements and financial instruments

The Company adopted FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for assets
and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The codification established a
common definition for fair value to be applied to existing generally accepted accounting
principles that requires the use of fair value measurements, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Additionally, FASB ASC 820 requires the use of valuation techniques
that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
These inputs are prioritized as follows:

•  Level 1: Observable market inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

•  Level 2: Observable market inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that
are observable either directly or indirectly; and

•  Level 3: Unobservable inputs where there is little orno market data, which require
the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Organization's financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivables,
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The carrj'ing amount of the Organization s financial
instruments approximates their fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments.
The carrying value of long-term debt approximates fair value due to their bearing interest at
rates that approximate current market rates for notes with similar maturities and credit
quality.

The Organization's interest rate swap agreements are classified as level 2 m the hierarchy, as
all significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly observable, such as the

.  underlying interest rate assumptions.

Third-paiiv contractual arrani^eincnts

A significant portion of revenue is derived from services to patients insured by third-party
payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and other commercial payers are at
defined service rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rale of reimbursement is
recorded a""s an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual allowances is
provided on outstanding patient receivables at the statement of financial position date.

Advertising expenses

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

-9-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 aiid 2018

Hole 2. Basis of accounting and summary of significant accounting policies fconliniiedj

Expense allocation
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Contributions . . .

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor resinctions or net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed
restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as an increase in net
assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the
contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are reported as an
increase in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of restriction. When a
restriction expires (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassifled to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Contributed property and equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of donation.
Contributions with donor-imposed stipulations regarding how long the contributed assets
must be used are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions; otherwise, the contributions
are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions.

Interest rate swap , • Cf ♦
The Organization uses an interest rate swap to effectively convert the variable rale on its btate
Authority Bond to a fixed rate, as described in Note 8. The change in the fair value of the
swap agreement and the payments to or receipts from the counterparty to the swap are netted
with the interest expense on the bonds. Cash flows from interest rate swap contracts arc
classified as a financing activity on the statement of cash flows.

Income taxes . c • c/mc
The Agency is a non-profit organization exempt from income taxes under Section iUHcXJ;
of the Internal Revenue Code. The Agency has also been classified as an entity that is not a
private foundation within the meaning of 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Foundation is a non-prof I organization exempt from income taxes under Section
5dl(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is an organization that is organized and operated
exclusively for the benef t of the .Agency.

Tliese financial slatemenls follow FASB ASC, Accounlingfor Uncerlain Income Taxes,
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement ot
tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a lax return.

Accowuingfor Uncerlain Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these
statements as the Organization believes it has taken no uncertain tax positions that could have
an effect on its f nancial statements.

Federal Form 990 (Return of an Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal yeais
2016, 20)7 and 2018 are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
fling.
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Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

]sjote 2. Basis of accQuntin& and summary of si-gnificant accounting pnlicies fcpntinued)

Reclassifications -r- . • j , u
Certain amounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reciassified m order to be
comparable with the current year presentation.

New Accountine Pronouncement .

On August 18,2016, FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profll Entities (Topic 958) -
Presemalion of Financial Siatements of Nol-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in information about
liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the t>'pc of information
provided about expenses and investment return. The Organization has adjusted the
presentation of these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to
all periods presented.

Subsequent events . m nnm *u a
The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through September 17, 2019, the da
the financial statements were available to be issued.

Note 3. Accounts receivable, net

Accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30,:

2019

Accounts receivable

Clients

Insurance companies
Medicaid

Medicare

Other receivables

Towns

NH Division of Mental Health
UnempIo)'ment tax refund
Contractual services

Receivable

Receivable Allowance

S  319,858 $ (192.955) S 126,903
190,094 (4.389) 185,705
620,780 (43.187) 577,593
55.207 f2.227^ 52.980

^  9^3 181

2018

Receivable

$ 332,312 $
144,808
540,750
7q'908

$imz25

2019

28,000
125,889
12,881

118.159

Receivable

Allowance

(179,244) $
(6,476)

(35,213)
G.615I

Het
153,068
138,332
505,537

67.293

2018

18,600

87,680

38.535

M4M5

Note 4. Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credil risk
consist of the following:

2019 2018

Receivables primarily for services provided
to individuals and entities located in
southern New Hampshire

Other receivables due from entities located
in New Hampshire

^  94T18I .mm

5: 144.815



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 4. Concentrations of credit risk fcontiniiedj

Bank balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ( FDIC ) for up to
the prevailing FDIC limit. At June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization had approximately
$1,287,000 and $1,212,400 in uninsured cash balances.

Note 5. Prepaids

Prepaids consists of the following at June 30;
2019 2018

Prepaid insurance
Prepaid rents

37,268

56.500

32,777

47,976

Mm

Note 6.

Note 7.

Property and eouinment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

Land

Buildings and improvements
Automobiles

Equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Lone term debt

Long term debt consists of the following as of June 30,

Series 20)5 New Hampshire Health and
Education Facilities Bond-

Payable tJirough 2036, original principal of
$3,04-2,730, remarketed and sold to People'.s
United Bonk at a variable rate, with an effective
rate of 3.5866% and 2.8169% at June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Secured by land,
building, equipment, and certain revenues,
and is subject to certain financial covenants.
The note matures August 2025. The
Organization has entered into an interest rate
swap agreement to effectively fix the interest
rate on the note. See Note 9.

Less: unamortized finance costs

Long term debt, less unamortized finance costs
Less; current portion of long term debt
Long term debt, less current portion

2019

565,000

4,036,993
18,800

1.630.644

6,251,437

(2.535.9681

2019

2,647,730
(338.942')

2,308,788
(93.538-)

■i: 2 215 250

2018
565,000

3,977,453
20,000

1.446.194
6,008,647

(2.351.982)

2018

2,755,230
(357.873)
2,397,357

(88.538)

- n -



Note 7.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Years ended June 30, 2019 and 20)8

Long term debt rcontinuedl

In 2017, the Organization retroactively adopted the requirements of FASB ASC 835-30 to
present debt issuance costs as a reduction of the carrying amount of debt rather than as an
asset.

Amortization of S18,930 and S18,929 is reported as interest expense in the consolidated
statement of activities for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Future maturities to long term debt are as follows:

LongTenii Debt Unamortized

Princioal Finance Costs

Year endine June 30.

2020 S  112,500 3:  (18,962) $ 93,538

2021 1 17,500 (18,962) 98,538

2022 122,500 (18,962) 103,538

2023 127,500 (18,962) 108,538

2024 132,500 (18,962) 113,538

Thereafter 2.035.230 f244.132^ 1.791.098

Total S  1338.942)

Note 8. Line of credit

As of June 30, 2019, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of 5850,000, which is available through March 29, 2021. Interest
accrued on the outstanding principal balance is payable monthly at the Wall Street Journal
Prime plus .50% (effective rate of 6.00% at June 30, 2019). The outstanding balance on the
line at June 30, 2019 was SO. The line of credit is secured by all business assets and real
estate.

As of June 30, 2018, the Organization had a demand line of credit with People's United Bank
with a borrowing capacity of $850,000, which was available through March 29, 2019.
Interest accrued on the outstanding principal balance was payable monthly at the Wall Street
Journal Prime plus 1.50% (effective rate of 6.00% at June 30,'2018). The outstanding
balance on the line at June 30,2018 was $0. Tlie line of credit was secured by all business
assets and real estate.

Note 9. Interest rate swap

During 2016, the Organization entered into an interest rate swap agreement with People's
United Bank that effectively fixes the interest rale on the outstanding principal of the Banks
term note at 3.045%.

Under the arrangement, the notional principal amount is the balance of the note, with the
Organization receiving floating payments of one month London InlerBank Offered rate
("LIBOR") plus .69% and paying a fi.xed rate of 3.045%.

The agreement matures August 2025 and has a notional amount of $2,64 7,730 and
$2,755,230 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Note 9. Interest rate swan Cconlinued^

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the interest rate swap agreement
is recorded at its fair value as an asset or liability, with the changes in fair value being
reported as a component ofthe change in net assets without donor restrictions. For the years
ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Organization reported an interest rate swap asset of
$58,030 and asset of S4 8,533 on the statement of financial position and a fair value gam /
(loss) on the interest rate swap of $9,497 and $85,586 on the statement of activities,
respectively. The fair value gain / (loss) is reported as a non-operating expense ofthe
Organization and is a non-cash transaction.

Note 10. Employee benefit plan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under Section
403(b) ofthe Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition. This program
covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have successfully completed at
least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per week. Eligible employees may
make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount allowed by the Internal Revenue
Code if they wish. Employer contributions totaled $109,592 and $99,861 for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 1 1. Commitments and contingencies

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/aCLM Center for Life
Management, has entered into an agreement with Parkland Medical Center ( PMC ) of
Derry, New Hampshire, which requires that CLM provide psychiatric ser\'ices and
consultations to inpalienls of PMC for the hospital medical and nursing st^ff. The
consultations are requestedby the hospital and responded to by CLM medical staff on an on-
call basis.

In addition to tlie psychiatric services, CLM provides emergency mental health assessments,
evaluations, and referral services to the emergency department ("ED") of the hospital. CLM
emergency service clinicians are available on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week basis to
see patients entering the ED who are experiencing a mental health crisis or psychiatric
emergency.

The original agreement expired May 31, 2018. however, a new agreement was effective July
!, 2018. The nevv agreement is effective for an initial one year term and will be automatically
renewed for up to two additional one year terms.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 20) 8, the Agency received approximately 68% and
72%, respectively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements. Being a
Stale of New Hampshire designated Community Mental Health Center affords the Agency
Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New Hampshire Department of Health
and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health provides a base aliocation of stale general
funds are taken as grant funds which arc drawn as related expenses are incurred. Medicaid is
comprised of 50% Federal funds and 50% New Hampshire State matching funds.
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Years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Nole 12. l.ease commitments

The Agency leases faciiilies and multiple copier agreements
Rent expense recorded under these arrangements was approximately $196,000 and $204,000
for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The following details the future minimum lease payments on leases with an initial or
remaining term of greater than one year as of June 30, 2019.

Years ending June 30.
2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Total

183,924

177,559

181,773
185,987

190.201

$  919 444

Note 13. Availability and liouiditv

The following represents the Organization's financial assets at June 30,;
2019

$1,662,875
943,181
284,929
11.087

2,902,072

(11.0871

2018

$1,640,075

864,230
144,815
11.087

2,660,207

(11.0871

Financial a<;sers at vear end:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Other receivable

Security deposit
Total financial assets

1 .ess amounts not available within one vear:
Security deposit

Financial assets available to meet general
Expenditures over the next twelve months

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available
funds.

Foi' purposes of analyzing resources available lo meet general expenditures over a 12-month
period, the Organization considers all expenditures related to its ongoing mission-related
activities, as well as the conduct of service undertaken to support those activities, to be
general expenditures.

The Organization's primary source of liquidity is its cash and cash equivalents.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures within one year, the
Organization operates with a budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to cover
general expenditures not covered by donor-reslricted resources.
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D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Position
June 30, 2019

Center for Life CLM

Management Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $  1,451,648 S  211,227 $  1,662,875 £ £  1,662,875

Accounts receivable, net 943,181 - 943,181 943,181

Other receivables 284,929 - 284.929 - 284,929

Prepaid expenses 93,768 -
93,768 -

93,768

Security deposit 11,087 - 11,087 - 11,087

Total current assets 2,784,613 ■  21 1,227 2,995,840 - 2,995,840

Property and equipment, net 3,715,469 - 3,715,469 - 3,715,469

Other assets:

Interest rate svii'ap agreement 58,030 - 58,030 - 58,030

Total assets S  6,558,1 12 S  211.227 S 6.769.339 $ S 6.769.339

I.IARII.ITIRS AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt $  93,538 $ $  93,538 S S  93,538

Accounts payable 76,558 - 76,558 - 76.558

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 402,801 -
402,801 -

402,801

Accrued vacation 372,138 - 372,138 -
372,138

.  Accrued expenses 18,961 -
18,961 -

18,961

Deferred revenue 11,980 . 11,980 -
11,980

Total current liabilities 975,976 -

975,976
-

975,976

Long term liabilities:

PMPM reserve 225,000 -
225,000 -

225,000

Long-term-debt less current portion 2,215,250 - 2,215,250 - 2,215.250

Total long term liabilities 2,440,250 - 2,440,250 - 2.440,250

Total liabilities 3,416,226 - 3,416,226 -
3,416,226

Net assets without donor restrictions 3,141,886 211,227 3,353,1 13 - 3,353,1 13

Total liabilities and net assets S  6.558.1 12 S  211.227 S 6.769.339 $ S 6.769.339

See Independent Auditor's Report - 16 -
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Consolidating Statement of Position

Total current liabilities

Long term liabilities

PMPM reserve

Long-term-debt less current portion

Total long term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets without donor restrictions

Total liabilities and net assets

865,703

112,737

865,703

112,737

June 30, 2018

Center for Li fc CLM

Manaeement Foundation Total Elimination.s Consolidated

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents S  1,429,298 $  210,777 S  1,640,075 $ $ 1,640,075

Accounts receivable, net 864,230 - 864,230 864,230

Other receivables 144,815 - 144,815 144,815

Prepaid expenses 80,753 - 80,753 80,753

Security deposit 11,087 - 1 1,087 1 1,087

Total current assets 2,530,183 210,777 2,740,960 2,740,960

Property and equipment, net 3,656,665 - 3,656.665 3,656,665

Other assets

Interest rale swap agreement 48,533 - 48,533 48,533

Total assets $  6.235.381 S  210.777 $ 6.446.158 $ S 6.446.158

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt $  88,538 S $  88,538 S $ 88,538

Accounts payable 53,554 - 53,554 53,554

Accrued payroll and payroll liabilities 375,055 - 375,055 375,055

Accrued vacation 327,657 - 327,657 327,657

Accrued expenses 13,319 - 13,319 13,319

Deferred revenue 7,580 - 7,580 7,580

865,703

112,737

2,421,556 2,421,556 2,421,556

3,287,259 - 3.287.259 3.287,259

2,948,122 210,777 3,158,899 3,158,899

S  6.235.381 S 210.777 S 6.446.158 $ S 6.446.158

See Independent Auditor's Report - 17 ■



THB MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
DiB/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Public sunport and revenues:

Public support;

Center for Life

Manacement

CLM

Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

Federal $  893,941 $ . $  893.941 $ S  893,941
Slate ofNcw Hampshire - BBH 258,681 •  . 258,681 258,681
Stale and local funding 43,601 43,601 43,601
Other public support 171,448 53.389 224.837 224,837

Total public support 1,367,671 53,389 1,421,060 1.421,060
Revenues:

Program service fees, net 13,076,818 . 13,076,818 13,076,818
Other service income 647,329 - 647,329 647,329
Rental income 5,188 - 5,188 5,188
Other 158,841 158,841 158,841
Gain on salcofasscls 10,000 . 10.000 10,000

Total revenues 13,898,176 . 13,898,176 13,898,176
Total public support and revenues 15,265,847 53,389 15,319,236 15.319,236

Oocratine expenses;

BBH funded programs;

Children 5.157,438 - 5,157,438 5,157,438
Elders 501,342 . 501,342 501.342
Vocational 266,091 . 266,091 266,091
Multi-Service 2,971,434 - 2,971,434 2,971,434
Acute Care 932.421 932,421 932,421
Independent Living 2,334,134 . 2,334,134 2,334,134
Assertive Community Treatment 734,195 . 734.195 734,195
Non-Specialized Outpatient 1.063,655 . 1.063.655 1,063,655

Non-BBH funded program services 160.482 52,939 213,421 213,421

Total program expenses 14,121,192 52,939 14,174.131 14,174,131
Administrative expenses 960,388 - 960,388 960,388

Total expenses 15.081.580 52,939 15.134.519 15.134.519
Change in net assets from operations 184,267 450 184,717 184,717

Non-oneraiing exnenses:

Fair value gain on interest rate swap 9.497 . 9,497 9,497
Change in net assets 193,764 450 194,214 194,214

Net assets, beginning of year 2,948,122 210,777 3,158,899 3,158,899
Net assets, end of year $  3.141.886 $ 211.227 $ 3,353,113 $ S 3,353,1 13

See independent Auditor's Report
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D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE M>\NAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidating Statement of Activities

Center for Life CLM

Public sunnon and revenues-
Managemrnt Foundation Total Eliminations Consolidated

Public support:

Federal S  1,005,755 $ $  1,005,755 S S  1,005,755
State of New Hampshire - BBH

316,921 . 316.921 316,921
State and local funding 43,602 . 43,602 . 43.602
Other public support 66,499 64,673 131,172 131,172

Total public support 1,432.777 64,673 1.497.450 1.497,450
Revenues;

Program service fees, net 12,364,822 . 12,364.822 12,364,822
Other service income 467,403 . 467,403 467,403
Rental income 4,985 4,985 4,985
Other 39,231 - 39,231 39,231

Total revenues 12,876,441 - 12,876.441 • 12,876.441
Total public support and revenues 14,309.218 64,673 14,373.891 14,373,891

Oncratinp expenses:

DDK funded programs:

Children 4,859,070 . 4,859,070 _ 4,859,070
Elders 282,13! . 282,!3L 282,131
Vocational 234,156 . 234,156 . 234,156
Multi-Service 2,609,377 . 2,609,377 2,609,377
Acute Care 775,806 . 775,806 775,806
Independent Living 2,226,618 . 2,226,618 2,226,618
Assertive Community Treatment 835,083 . 835,083 835,083
Non-Spccializcd Outpatient 980,645 - 980,645 980,645

Non-BBH funded program services 96,069 36,426 132,495 132.495
Total program expenses 12.898,955 36,426 12,935.381 12,935,381

Administrative expenses 1,049,580 - 1.049.580 • 1,049,580
Toiarcxpcnscs 13,948,535 36,426 13,984.961 13,984,961

Change in net assets from operations 360,683 28,247 388,930 388,930
Non-oiKrating expenses:

Fair value gain on interest rate swap 85,586 - 85.586 85,586
Change in net assets 446,269 28.247 474,516 474,516

Net assets, beginning of year 2,501,853 182.530 2.684,383 • 2,684,383
Net assets, end of year S  2,948,122 $  210,777 $ 3,158,899 $ $ 3.158.899

See Independent Auditor's Report - 19 -



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/l:1/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Analysis of Accounts Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Clients

Insurance companies

Medicaid

Medicare

Allowance

Total

Accounts

Receivable

Beginning of

Year Gross Fees

Contractual

Allowances and

Other Discounts Change in

Given Cash Receipts Allowance

$  332,312 $ 1,335,372 $ (356,399) $ (991,427) S

144,808 2,237,147 (1,075,770) (1,116,091)

540,750 12.473,046

70,908 617,187

(224,548) --

(2,059,091) (10,333,925)

(251,328) (381,560)

Accounts

Receivable

End of

Year

S  319,858

190,094

620,780

55,207

 (18,210) (242,758)

S  864,230 $ 16.662.752 5 (3.742.588) $ (12,823.003) 5 (18,210) $ 943,181

See Independent Auditor's Report -20-



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLvM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30. 2019

Children Elders Voaalional

Multi-

Sefvice

Acute

Care

Independent

Uvjng

Assertive

Community

Treatment

Non-

Specialized

Oiitnaticnt N

Other

Total

Program

.Scrvice,s

Admin

istrative

Total

Agency

ubiic support and revenues:

Public support:

Federal

State of New Hampshire - BBH

Stale and local funding

Other public support

Total public support

$  2.500

6.328

l-l.e?!

24.900

S  S S

3,945

S  35.538

86,309

S  790,502

22.950

S  62.901

162.099

$  2,500 S

14,271

122.078

S

14.659

520

893.941

258.681

43,601

170.448

s

1.000

$  893.941

258.681

43.601

171.448

48,399
•

3,945 121,847 813,452 225.000 138,849 15,179 1.366.671 1,000 1.367.671

Revenues:

Progratn service fees, net

Other service income

Rental income

Other

5.692.793

52.898

889

43.669

3.484

542.785

49.245

2,566

202

222,250

2,103

168

3,745,411

880

1,632

23,431

1,370

524,729

275,064

889

6.962

556

1,267,991

1.308

889

19.206

1.596

656.375

7.948

599

416.798

-  219.489

889

13,406

703

7,686

48,445

954

70

13.076,818

647,329

5,188

120,255

9.248

38.586

752

13.076.818

647,329

5.188

158.84]

10.000

Total revenues 5.793.733 594.798 27.4.521 3.773.224 808,200 1.290.990 664.922 651.285 57.165 13.858.838 39.338 13.898.176

Total public support and revenues 5.842.132 594.758 224.521 3.777.169 930.047 2,104.442 889,922 790.134 72,344 15.225,509 40.338 15.265.847

Total expenses

Change in net assets from operations

5.508.639

333.493

535,422 284.175 3.173.379 995.792 2.492.759 784.083 1.135.941 171.390 15.081.580 . 15.081.580

59,376 (59,654) 603,790 (65.745) (388,317) 105,839 (345,807) (99,046) 143,929 40,338 184,267

Non-opcraiinp. ext>enses:

• Fair value gain on interest rate swap 3,308 192 160 1.776 528 1.516 569 668 66 8.783 714 9.497

Change in net assets S  336.80! S  59.568 $ (59,494) S  605,566 $  (65.217) $  (386.801) S  106,408 $  (345,139) $ (98,980) $  152.712 $  41.052 S  193,764

See Independent Auditor's Report -21 -



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

Dm/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

Schululc oF Program Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30.2019

Assertive non- Total

Mulli- Acute Independent Community Specialized Other Program Admin- Total

Children ELdSis Vocnlinnal .Service Care Living Treatment Oiitnatient Non-BBH Services l.stralivc Agcncv

crsonnel costs:

Salaries and %vagcs S 3,449.000 S 351.535 S  167,769 $ 2,041.521 S 693.535 $  1.008.680 $  446.541 S  698.885 S  105,994 J 8.963.460 S  604.197 $ 9.567.657

Employee benefits 702.665 93.009 53.845 471.770 87,810 284,070 126,462 107.947 19.984 1.947.562 131.727 2,079,289

Payroll taxes 240.278 24,868 11,643 140.823 49,856 69.022 31.695 48.250 6.990 623.425 41,859 665,284

kccounling/audil fees 21.039 1,223 I.0I8 11.319 3.366 9.660 3.629 4,257 427 55,988 5,753 61,741

\dvcrtising 12,077 813 671 6,443 2.145 5,231 2,081 2,766 529 32.756 3.376 36,132

'onferences, conventions and meetings 4,413 111 744 4,026 533 624 751 7,058 346 18,606 9,597 28.203

)cpceciaiion 71.069 4,121 3.427 38,145 11,341 32.556 12.219 14,340 1,428 188.646 15,339 203,985

Equipment maintenance 11,603 674 563 6,224 1,853 5.308 1.997 2,342 3,989 34,553 2,524 37.077

-Equipment rental 15,333 612 509 6,407 3,623 4,839 1.816 3,852 213 37,204 2.280 39.484

nsurancc 27.041 1.567 1,303 16,014 4,316 12,388 4,649 5.456 544 73,278 5.836 79,114

ntcrest expense 38.281 2.218 1,845 20.545 6,107 17,536 6,582 7,719 772 101,605 8.264 109,869

-cgal feo 8.757 508 422 4,701 1.398 4,012 3,561 1.767 176^ 25,302 1.890 27.192

vlcmbcrship dues 13.998 918 734 9,783 2,636 6,470 2.655 4.568 3.708 45.470 6.663 52.133

!>ccupancy expenses 180.310 2.737 2,316 45.731 7.665 701,658 9,010 56,897 963 1.007.337 10.369 1.017.706

DfTicc expenses 81.067 3.749 4,322 35.797 13.077 34,483 23,570 21.619 2.276 219,960 20,386 240.346

5ihcr expenses 8.290 385 322 4.354 4.081 3.963 1.206 1.886 903 25,395 17.615 43.010

Dthcf profcssiortal fees 131.798 7,311 6,087 72.497 25,597 59,663 21.840 49,084 2.548 376,425 57.890 434.315

^rogram supplies 55,575 2,056 2.745 26,900 11.521 14,831 13,014 20,800 8,624 156.066 12,646 168.712

Travel 84.794 2.877 5.806 8.434 1.961 59.140 20.917 4.162 63 188.154 2.177 190.331

5.157.438 501.342 266.091 2,971,434 932,421 2.334.134 734.195 1,063.655 160,482 14.121.192 960.388 15,081,580

Administrative allocation 351.201 34.080 18.084 201.945 63,371 158.625 49.888 72.286 10.908 960.388 (960.3881 .

Total program expenses $ 5.508.639 5;  535.422 S  284.175 S 3.173.379 S 995,792 5 2,492.759 S  784.083 S  1.135.941 S  171.390 $ 15.081.580 $ $ 15.081.580

Sec Independent Auditor's Report -22-



BOARD OF DIRECTORS FY2020

David Hebert

Chairperson
Town: Derry
Start:: 9/28/2016
Current Term: 20J9-2022

TBD

Vice Chair

Susan Davis

Secretary

Town: Hampslead
Start: 6/23/2012
Current Term: 2017-2020

Ron Lague
Past Chairperson
Town: Derry

Starl:6/2V20n
Current Term: 2017-2020

Elizabeth Roth

Town: Salem

Start: ̂ 20/2006

Judi Ryan
Town: Salem

.Start: 6/23/2012
Current Term: 2018-2021

Jeffrey Rind, MD
Town: Derry
Start: 6/25/2009
Current Term: 2018-2021

Gail Corcoran

Town: Salem

Start: ̂ 28/2010
Current Term: 2018-2021

VicTopo
President & CEO

Town: Londonderry
Start: 6/30/1999
Current Term: 2018-2021

Vernon Thomas

Town: Derry

Start; 6/28/2013
Current Term: 2019-2022



Maria Gudinas

Town: Atkinson

Start; V25/2018
Current Term: 2018-2021

Christopher Peterson, MD
Town: Derry

Start: 9/27/2018
Cun-enI Term: 2018-2021

Joseph Crawford
Town: Derr)'
Start: 6/26/2019
Current Term: 2019-2022



VICTOR TOPO

President/Chief Executive Officer

Successfijl 32-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staiT with a persistent focus on mission and
achieving results. Talent^for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-
traditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

Operations
Reorganization and reinvention
Team building and leadership
Strategic planning
Collaboration

«  Strategic partnerships
o  Strong relationship with funders
•  Community building

•  Innovation

1999-Present
Professional Experience

Center for Life Management - Derry, NH
President/Chief Executive Officer

Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association including two residential facilities.

Key results:
• Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from three to six.
• Revenues increased from 6.5 million to 13 million.

®  Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public
relations strategy while also rebranding CLM in 2004.

® Guided Board of Directors towards more accountability including higher expectation
from management and individual board members.

•  Initiated and implemented Coiporate Compliance Program, including selection of
coiporate compliance officer

«  Increased year after year number of persons served starting with 3,400 to nearly 6,000.
• Created and implemented strategy to integrate behavioral health care with physici^

healthcare. Integrated behavioral health services into two Primary Care/Pediatric
Practices and two Specialty Practices in Southern New Hampshire.

®  Consolidated outpatient offices toward design and construction of new state of the art
26,000 square foot facility. Received national awards for design and use of new
facility.

•  Provided leadership and vision to oversee the development and implementation of an
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAJSCE. Software now includes e-
prescribing and has begun acquiring Meaningful Use dollars with regular upgrades
over course of fifteen years.

o Adopted Neurostar Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS) in 2010 as newest neuro
tech treatment for treatment resistant Major Depressive Disorder. First free standing
community mental health center in the U.S. to offer it.

«

Pathways, Inc. - Mentor, OH
Chief Executive Ofilcer/Executive Director

Started with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.



VICTOR TOPO
-Page 2-

Key results:

®  In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio's first 24 hour 7 days
a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).

•  Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 long-term patients back to cur
community.

•  Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing. ^

o  Created county's only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).
•  Pathways' first long range strategic plan in 1992.
•  Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431-,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center - Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager

Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.
Key results:

•  Transitioned consumers back into super\'ised and independent living.

©  Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.

©  Designed and implemented agency's first case management program.

EDUCATION

Master of Social Work (MSW)
West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)
Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS

Heritage United Way - Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission - Co-Chair

Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee - Co-Chair

Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Behavioral Health Network - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Londondcrry Chamber of Commerce - Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regional Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program - Graduate, Class of 2001



KENNETH M. BROWN, M.D.,M.P.H.

EDUCATION

1994-1996

1991-1994

1987-1992

1987-1991

1983-1987

1985-1986

Child and Adolescent Psychiatry Fellowship
University of Miami/ Jackson Memorial Hospital

Psychiatry Residency
Medical University of South Carolina
Institute of Psychiatry
Charleston, South Carolina

Doctor of Medicine
Tulane University School of Medicine
Tulane Medical Center

Charity Hospital
New Orleans, Louisiana

Masters of Public Health
Tulane University School of Tropical Medicme and Public Health
New Orleans, Louisiana

Bachelor of Science Engineering
Major: Biomedical Engineering
Tulane University School of Engineering

Tulane University Honor Scholar Junior Year Abroad
Major: Engineering
University of Southampton
Southampton, England

EMPLOYMENT

2000-Present Medical Director
Hampstead Hospital
Hampstead, New Hampshire

1996-2000 Chief, Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist
Hampstead Hospital
Hampstead, New Hampshire



EMPLOYMENT (cont.)
1996-Present Solo Private Practice (Inpatient and Outpatient)

Child, Adolescent and Adult Psychotherapy and Psychopharmacology
Hampstead Hospital
218 East Road
Hampstead, New Hampshire

1997-2000 Child and Adolescent Psychiatrist
Center for Life Management
Community Mental Health Center
Deny, New Haihpshire

] 991 -1994 Court Appointed Expert Witness
Court Appointed Designated Examiner
Charleston County Court

1993 -1994 Treating Psychiatrist
South Carolina Department of Mental Health
Dual Diagnoses Community Mental Health Clinic
Charleston, South Carolina

ACADEMIC AFFILIATIONS

1999-Present Adjunct Professor in Clinical Research
Dartmouth University
Hanover, New Hampshire

RESEARCH

2001-2003 Sub-investigator
Access Clinical Trials

A Three- Week. Multicenter. Randomized. Double-Blind. Placebo-
Controlled, Parallel-Groun Safety and Efficacy Stiidv of Extended-Release
Carbamazenine in Patients with Bipolar Disorder.
Shire Laboratories

A Three- Week. Multicenter. Randomized. Double-Blind. Placebo-
Cnntrolled. Parallel-Group Safety and F.fficacv Studv of Extended-Release
Carbama^ppinf^ in Lithium Failure Patients with Bipolar Disorder.
Shire Laboratories

A Double-Blind. Parallel Studv of the Safety. Toierahilitv and Preliminary
RfHcacv of Flutamide Compared to Placebo in Patients with Anorexia.
Nervosa

Vela Pharmaceuticals Inc.



RF.SRARCH fconU

A Phase IIL Randomized, Double-Blind. Placebo-ControUed Study of
Safety and Efficacy of C-1073 (Mifepristonel in Patients with Major
Depressive Di-cnrder with Psychotic Features Who are not Receiving
Antideoressants or Antipsvcbotics.
Corcept Therapeutics, Inc.

Olapyanine Versus Ziorasidone in the Treatment of Schizophrenia
Eli Lilly and Company

A Multicenter- Randomized. Double-Blind. Study of Aripinrazole Versus
Placebo in the Treatment of Acutely Manic Patients with BiTX)lar
Disorder.

Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceutical Research Institute

PUBLICATIONS and POSTER PRESENTATIONS

Riiprnpion Sustained Release in Adolescents With Comorbid Attention-
Deficit/ Hvperactivitv Disorder and Depression

Daviss, Bentivoglio, Racusin, Brown, et al.,
J. Am. Acad. Child Adolescent Psychiatry, 40:3, March 2001

A Retrospective Study ofCitaloDrara in Adolescents with Depression
Bostic J.Q., Prince J., Brown K., Place S.
Journal pfChild and Adolescent Psychopharmacology 2001; 11; 159-166.

Citalonram for the Treatment of Adolescent Anxiety Disorders: A Pilot
Study.

Prince J., Bostic J.Q., Monuteaux M., Brown K., Place S.
Psychopharmacoogy Bulletin 2002; 36: 100-107

2001 Citalonram in Adolescents with Mood and Anxjetv Disorders: A Ch^ Review,
Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association,
New Orleans, LA 5/9/2001

2001 Citalonram in Adolescents with Mood and Anxiety Disorders.
Presented at the Annual Meeting ofNCDEU,
Phoenix, A2 5/29/2001

2001 Citalonram in Adolescents with Mood. Anxjetv. and Comorbid Conditions.
Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association 2001
Institute on Psychiatric Seryices,
Orlando, PL 10/11/2001



HONORS AND OFFICES HELD

ACADEMIC AWARDS AND OFFICES
"Golden Apple Award for Excellence in teaching medical students
"Residency Education Committee representative
—Vice President Tulane Medical School Class of 1991
-President Jewish Medical Student Organization
ACADEMIC AWARDS AND OFFICES (cont.)
"Tau Beta Pi (engmeering honor society)
-Alpha Eta Mu Beta (biomedical engineering honor society)
-Alpha Epsilon Delta (premedical honor society)
-Honor Scholar Junior Year Abroad Program

SOCIETy MEMBERSHIPS
—American Medical Association
—American Psychiatry Association
-American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry
—New Hampshire Medical Association
—New Hampshire Psychiatry Association
"New England Society of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

CERTIFICATIONS

-Board Certified General Psychiatry
American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology, #43597

-Board Eligible, Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

LICENSES

—New Hampshire, Maine, South Carolina, Florida, Louisiana



DIANA LACHAPELLE, CPA

Strategically focused leader with extensive operations, accounting and financial management
experience. Possesses keen business acumen and decision making skill. Proven track record of working

collaboratively and driving change to optimize profitability.

• Strategic Planning
• Revenue Cycle Management
• Financial Reporting & Analysis

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Core Qualifications

• SOX Compliance
• Budgeting &. Forecasting
• Contract Negotiations

Internal Controls

Audit

Labor Management

VICE PRESIDENT - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d.b.a. Center for Life Management,
Derry, NH March 2020 to present
Provide leadership and direction in the areas of finance, revenue cycle and cash management. Develop,
implement and evaluate strategic plans to improve operating performance.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, NH February 2018 to
February 2020

Leader of this for profit, 50-bed, acute care rehabilitation hospital and outpatient treatment center
reporting directly to the Regional President. Hospital is part of a publicly traded healthcare system
comprised of 133 inpatient rehabilitation hospitals, 245 home health agencies and 82 hospice locations.

Rev contributions and results:

•  Strategic leadership to achieve discharge growth of 15% year over year for two consecutive years in
an industry where 3% growth is the norm.

•  Financial leadership to realize EBITDA growth year over year of 24% and 19% for 2018 and 2019,
respectively.

•  Organizational and change management to improve employee engagement results by 16 basis points.
•  Process improvement leadership to improve patient outcomes and satisfaction.

CONTROLLER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Encompass Health Rehabilitation Hospital (formerly HealthSouth), Concord, NH January 2012 to
January 2018
Responsible for all financial aspects of the hospital including the development of the annual operating
plan, monthly analysis of results and execution of corrective actions as needed to ensure achievement of
planned results. Chief liaison between corporate finance and the hospital.



Key contributions and results:

•  Implemented cost reduction initiatives to improve profitability by 7%.
•  Restructured outpatient operation to create a viable business unit, improving net income by 34%.
•  Developed and executed a labor management plan to improve operational efficiency and reduce full

time equivalents by 7%.
•  Preceptor for newly hired Controllers.

CPA SERVICES

Diana C, Lachapelle, CPA, Bedford, NH 2003-2011
Provided accounting leadership and business solutions to clients including cash management,
forecasting, budgeting, financial statement preparation, tax preparation, and development of
internal controls.

DIRECTOR OF WORLDWIDE FOOTWEAR COST & FINANCIAL PLANNING
Timberland Corporation, Strathara, NH 1996-1999
•  Responsible for all financial aspects of this $550 million manufacturing and sourcing

operation including accounting, forecasting, budgeting, reporting, product costing and audit.
•  Partnered with the VP of Operations to achieve key cost reductions, as well as, improved

reliability and quality resulting in actual performance exceeding budget by $6.9 million.

FINANCIAL MANAGER, CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP
Nashua Corporation, Nashua, NH 1993-1996

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young, Manchester, NH 1989-1992

EDUCATION & CERTIFICATION

Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of New Hampshire, Durham
Certified Public Accountant, State of New Hampshire

Member of the American College of Healthcare Executives and Healthcare Financial
Management Association

SYSTEM EXPERIENCE

Oracle Enterprise Performance Management System, Oracle PeopleSoff, Hyperion, Cemer EMR
and reporting, E-Time, Attendance Enterprise, Microsoft Office Suite, Ariba Contract
Management, Maven, Beacon, Tableau
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To obtain a position where I can maximize my multilayer of management skills, quality assurance,

QbleCtfve program development, experience as an educator, customer service, and a successful track record In
the health care environment

Professional

Ixperienee Lead

Healthcare Systems Align, LLC
Nottingham, NH

Healthcare Systems AllQn.com

1/2010-Present

■  Provide consultsftiofi to agencies, medical practices and practitioners to establish systems
of integrated healthcare that Includes practice patterns, billing strategies, quality and
compliance strategy, policy development, outcome measurement and supervision.

VP of Quality, Compliance Center for Life Management, Derry. NH 1/2009 - Present
www.centerforiifemanaQement.orq

-  Senior management position in mental health center serving 6000 consumers
Responsibilities include development implementation and monitoring of strategies and
systems to continuously improve the quality of services to consumers. Assure compliance
to state and f^eral regulations.

•  Develop and maintain systems to assure fidelity to evidence based practices.
■  Continuous development of EMR and associated staff training.
"  Establish and maintain outcome measures and their incorporation into Qi/UR initiatives.
•  Develop and implement projects to improve the quality of care.
•  Chair of agency Safety Committee.

Director, Behavioral Health Portsmouth Regional Hospital 1/2006 - 12/2009
Services Portsmouth, NH

"  Responsible for clinical, administrative and fiscal management of service line which
includes 22 bed Inpatienl psychiatric unit. Psychiatric Assessment and Referral Service
and interdepartmental service. Supervision of an Assistant Director and Coordinator,
Responsible for 85 staff. Oversee the integration of behavjora! health Into primary care.
Manage annual budget of 10.5 million dollars.

•  Chair Directors Operations Meeting. Coordinate monthly meeting of hospital departmental
directors.

•  Co-chair of Patient Flow Committee. Analysis and development of data systems to
monitor patient throughput Develop and implement strategies to improve the efficiency of
care.
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Assistant Director of Portsmouth Regional Hospital 4/2005 -1/2006
Behavioral Health Services Portsmouth, NH

"  Respor^ible for the clinical and administrative functioning of the Psychiatric assessment
and Refisnal Service (PARS). Manage annual budget of 600K.

•  Supervision of 22 clinicians who provide psychiatric crisis assessments, admissions.
Intake and referral 24 hours a day.

■  Supervision, oversight and development of the Interdepartmental Service: 3 clinicians who
provide psychiatric assessment, consultation and therapy to patients admitted medically to
the hospital.

Director of Adult Services Community Partners: Dover, NH 11/2001 - 4/2005

•  Responsible for the clinical, administrative and financial operations of the Adutt Outpatient
^Therapy, EAP, Admissions, Emergency Senrices, Geriatric and Acute Senrice programs
(PHP/lOP) serving Straffoid County. Supervised 4 mangers responsible for 26 staff.
Manage annual budget of 3 million dollars.

Clinical Director of RIveitend Community Mental Health Ctr 9/2000-11/2001
Community Support Prog. Concord, NH

•» Responsible for the cllnicai, administrative and fiscal operations of programs serving 554
consumers with severe and persistent mental illness. Directly supervise 5 managers
responsible for 60 staff. Development and oversight of annual budget of 4 million dollars.

Treatment Team Riverbend Community Mental Health Ctr 8/1996-9/2000
Coordinator Concord, NH

»  Clinical and administrative supervision of a muitidiscipllnary team of 12 direct care staff.
Serving an average of 100 individuals with severe and persistent mental illness.

Team Leader Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1993-8/1996

"  Clinical and administrative supervision of 8 direct care staff. Serving an average of 80
Individuals with severe and persistent mental Illness.

■  Developed the first interagency treatment team to serve individuals with severe and
persistent mental illness and deveiopmentai disabilities in NH.

Clinical Case Manager Strafford Guidance Center; Dover, NH 1/1992- 12/1993
■  Provided psychotherapy and case management services to individuals vi/lth severe and

persistent mental illness and substance abuse Issues as part of The Continuous
Treatment Team study through Dartmouth College.

-2-
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Tfi&chlnBfi
Educational

Experience

Assistant Director/
Behavioral Specialist

Residential Resources; Keene. NH 1/1989- 1/1992

"  Directed all administrative, fiscal and clinical activities for 5 group homes and 3 supported
living arrangements serving people with developmental disabilities. Provide behavioral
consultation to Individuals with behavioral/functional challenges.

Behavioral Specialist I The Center for Humanistic Change
Clinical Supervisor Manchester, NH

8/1986-1/1989

■  Provide behavioral consultation to Individuals facing behavioral/functional challenges In
group homes, day programs, vocational and family settings. Supen^ 2 clinicians.

House Manager
Greater Lawrence Psychological Center 5/1984 _ 5/1986
Lawrence, MA

Administrative, clinical and financial management of a group home serving 4
men with severe and persistent mental illness.

Adjunct Faculty New England College; Henniker. NH
www.nec.edu

9/1994-Present

Teach graduate and undergraduate courses in psychology, counseling., program
development and evaluation

Director of Masters

Degree Program in New England College; Henniker, NH
Mental Health Counseling

1/1998-3/2002

•  Developed and implemented curriculum for degree program.
B  Oversight of curriculum to insure quality, academic standards and student retention.
■  Development and execution of marketing plan.
•  Provided academic advising and mentoring to students.
■  Faculty recruitment, supervision and monitoring of academic quality

Curriculum Consultant New England College; Henniker, NH present
■  Devetoped curricula for a certificate and C.A.G.S. In the integration of behavioral health

Into primary medicine.

-3-



e  Provided individual, group, and family counseling. Assisted with other indicated medical
procedures such as electroconvulsive therapy, and participated in milieu management and
activities.

EDUCATION:

O New Hampshire College, Graduate School of Business, Manchester, NH
M.B.A. Degree

0  Fitchburg State College, Graduate School of Guidance and Counseling, Fitchburg, MA
18 Graduate Hours in Counseling 1973

• Nathaniel Hawthorne College, Antrim, NH
B.A. Degree '971

LICENSES AND PROFESSIONAL,AFFILIATIONS:
e  Licensed Certified Social Worker, Massachusetts License #3028-2-051-181
o Member in Good Standing National Association of Social Workers



Angela Moran

Objective: Seeking employment in management, human services and customer service.

Experience;

Center for Ufe Management Derry, NH July 2017-Present

Interim Director of Housing 2/2019-Pjesent

Works collaboratively with The Bureau Housing Supports to outreach and assist
homeless individuals

Engage homeless towards finding permanent housing/treatment for mental illness or
substance misuse.

Refer Individuals for clinical screening and diagnostics Into case management services.
Participate within the local LSDA, foster cooperation and collaboration between service
providers, as well as follow through on referrals made to CLM in regards to possible
homeless individuals.

Follow state and federal regulations regarding use of funds and services for the
homeless and mentally ill.

Adhere to CLM and State of NH regulations regarding documentation and HMIS data
collection

Attend /participate in HMIS data Committee, Advisory Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings
Attend /participate in HMIS data Committee, Advisory Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings
Assist in the development of NOFA documentation and HMIS Annual Performance
Reports

Update APR's for PATH outreach, All Projects for housed Participants that are in SPC,
SPCII, PHlandFHl

Follow through with Audits preformed on all Projects done by BHS
Adhere to policies with Rental calculations, Redeterminations, FMR's
Assist with getting documentation of homeiessness for HUD's definition of the
Chronically homelessness

Voucher participants that fail into the HUD's CM definition and assist them with finding
housing

Work with landlords who accept the housing voucher through CLM and BHS to assist
with and problem solve issues with participants
Reports to VP and OA of CLM on a weekly basis



Housing Development Assistant 10/2018-2/2019

• Works coilaborativeiy with Housing Director to Outreach and assist homeless
individuals.

•  Engage homeless towards finding permanent housing/treatment for mental illness or
substance misuse.

•  Refer individuals for clinical screening and diagnostics into case management services.
•  Participate within the local LSDA, foster cooperation and collaboration between service

providers, as well as follow through on referrals made to CLM in regards to possible
homeless individuals.

•  Follow state and federal regulations regarding use of funds and services for the
homeless and mentally ill.

•  Adhere to CLM and State of NH regulations regarding documentation and HMIS data
collection

.  Attend /participate in HMiS data Committee, Advisory Meetings, Housing Action
Meetings, Balance of State Continuum of Care meetings and various BOSCOC meetings

• Assist in the development of NOFA documentation and HMIS Annual Performance
Reports

•  Assist individuals w/ applying for Medicaid and Social Security benefits
•  Perform other duties as assigned by Director

PATH outreach worker 7/2017-10/2108.

•  Coordinate intake and needs for assessments for all clients and work with clients and
their barriers to obtain services/housing and/or perform a warm handoff to in-house
case manager.

•  Perform outreach services, contacting homeless persons in all places where they
congregate in our catchment area.

•  Provide supportive services in a non-judgmental manner.
.  Provide information, referrals, and advocacy to assist clients in accessing services and

resources.

•  Assist clients with procuring necessary documents and services such as ID card, birth
certificate, social security, disability income.

•  Assist clients with housing applications, complete supportive and subsidized housing
paperwork, and advocate for clients with prospective landlords.

Work Opportunities Unlimited Dover, NH 2016 2017

Career Resource Specialist Seacoast Area



Assist clients develop career goals/Work support and assessment
Intake coordination for OCYF clients

Create and develop Individual Support Plans/Coaching clients to help maximize success
Job retention skills/Job coaching skills
Mock interviewing skills and assessment

Job Development/Business Development

!tutton Hill Center-fipnpsis Healthcare North Andover, MA 2016-Present

Recreation Assistant

•  Dally activities for resident-groups of 5-12 residents at a time in groups
• One on One visits offer sensory stimulation

•  Prepare progress notes quarterly for resident's progress
•  Assist with transporting, communicating and setting up for activity programs

Rutland Healthcare and Rehabilitation -GPnesis Healthcare Rutland, VT 2015-2016

Recreation Assistant \

•  Daily activities for resident-groups of 5-12 residents at a time in groups
• One on One visits offer sensory stimulation

•  Prepare progress notes quarterly for resident s progress
•  Assist with transporting, communicating and setting up for activity programs

Balance Chiropractic PILC Concord, NH 2008-2015

Office Manager

• Maintained all charts and intakes for patients

•  Scheduling, collecting co-pays, calling insurance companies for benefits
•  Following up on charts and following up with payments from patients
.  Ordered supplies, supplements, fielding calls to schedule and reschedule patients

rhildren's Place Manchester, NH 2007-2008

Store Manager

•  Ran all aspects of the stores operation from scheduling, payroll, shipment, floor sets
•  Training all management and part time sales associates
•  Customer service

nlvmpia Sports Salem, NH 199S-2007

Store Manager



•  Part time from 1995-1997, Manager Trainee, Store Manager 2000
•  Ran all operations of store and maintained good customer service
•  Training for all management and part time sales associates
• Made sure to reach sales goals and inventory

Volunteer Experience

YMCA Allard Center of Goffstown

• Volunteered for co-coaching of competitive swim team (18 kids ages 11-16)
•  Volunteered for Kohl's Cares Softball tournament to raise $500
•  Volunteered for Zumba/dance-a-thon to raise over $200

Education:

Rutland High School

Seacoast Career School

References:

1997

2006



KEY ADMINISTRATION PERSONNEL

HUD SHELTER PLUS CARE I

Contractor Name: The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire dba CLM Center for Life Management

' ';r . ' ' • ,

NAMEV'' JOB TITLE . Vr : - ■ ' / - '  FTEs;P .. ^SALARY/--

l:P,EReENj;PAID^

'>^Qntract: .

^vAMO.UNT^I^'AtD-
r . VftpM

v.r"''-.:- :':. -."'

Vic Topo President/Chief Executive Officer 1 $176,485 5.00% - V -^$Bj824

Diana Lachapelle Vice President/Chief Financial Officer 1 $140,000 5.00% 'i ^^xroop

Kenneth Brown Chief Medical Officer 1 $260,000 5.00%

Steve Arnault VP, Clinical ServiceQuallty, Compliance 1 $133,007 7.00% r  ■; ^;-$;9;3i0
Angela Moran Program Manager - Housing Development 1 $42,000 75.00% a. H. P l$31i500

TOTAL SALARIES ^  - ;$69;635



FORM NUMBER P-37 (venton 5/8/lS)

Subject; Continuum of Care. Shelter Plus Care 1. Pcnnanent Suotxiitive Housing. SS-2O2O-BHS-04-F£J^MAd^

Notice: This agreement end all of its attacKmcnls shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor haeby mutually agree as follows;

'  GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contrartor Name

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire dba
CLM Center for Life Management

1.4 Contractor Address
10 Tsieitneto Rd

Deny; NH 03038

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)434-1577

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

July 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$285,240

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Sigfej^ r ^ 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Vic Topo, President/CEO

1.13 Acknowledgement: State 6f New Hampshir6^0""iy Rocklngham

On ̂ ii<^/e,2i^o3?/j?beforc the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
p?5?OTto be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13..I- Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

•  rs«.^r ^

li*yCe«mlnlofi£*pir«Atf9us»5,2019

State Agency Sign^e

u yiV D^e: (
nt'^f AlUnini

1

1J 5 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval by th

By;

artmcnt lion, Division of Personnel f»/ap;7//co6/«^

Director, On;

1.17 Approval by Ih^ Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (//applicable)

^1^///,. // / J-— 0"^

andthe1.18 Approv ov or

By;

Executive Council (if applicable)

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOWSERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The Siatc of New Hampshire, acring
through the agency identified In block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which Is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of flmds, and In no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5. { . The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBrr B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability lo the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwiihstanding'any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY COfmiACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information lo the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws. .
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor^hall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
-6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60). and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United Stales issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the Slate or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in svriting, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agrecmcni. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTlALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As uscd in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Stale or purcha^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Stale.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing In
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the ̂ te of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Stale. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMMFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,

indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage. In amounts
of not less than S1,000,000p«r occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. D^artmcnt of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contntctor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for ail insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior svrinen
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be anached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws In connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the Slate to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of E>efault shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.'

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval ofsuch
amendment, waiver or disch^ge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBrT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of
(his Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to iany state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of.this Agreement will remain in full force and
efTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Shelter Plus Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services descrit>ed herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. For the purposes of this agreement, the. Department has identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient. in accordance with 2 CFR 200.300.

1.4. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the Continuum of Care (CoC) grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts,, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but iast as long as the records are retained.

1.5. The Contractor shail maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the applicable Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.6. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlmed in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.7. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMiS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Iriformation required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit 1 for Privacy
requirerr^nts.

1.8. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.

1.9. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program v>4ilch is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

TfcQHCSNH ICLM SPCI £*riU)n A CenSeclOr WtoU,
SPY. 2020-2021
SS-202«HSO4^RWK-0S PtgtlolS Otta



New Hampshire DepaHment of Heatth and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Shelter Plus Care, Permanent Supportive Housing Program
delivering scattered-site apartments in Westem Rocklngham County for twenty-five (25)
chronically-homeless Individuals living with severe / chronic mental illness, and v/hich includes,
but Is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not Imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing; and

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal t>eing assistance to the participant In obtaining the
skills necessary to live In the community Independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and 8HS to deterrriine Contractor requirement compliance. Including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of-Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
hbrfieless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelesSness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
docunientation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to v/hom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

TK«CSNH / CLM SPCI SxhlbltA Cortr»c»r Inltort.
S'FYt 2020-2021
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New Hampshire Depaitment of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic.violence. dating violence,
'  or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party, such as a

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records; law
enforcement report or records: communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemalls, text messages, and social media posts; or a vrritten certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual lncome. For each program participant who receives housing'assistance
vrtiere rent or an occupancy charge Is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; arid

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefrts statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received l>efore the date of the evaluation:

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of Income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the prxjgram for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided In 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F):and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement In 24
CFR 576.91.

2.3.1.6. Housing Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing staridards in 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.
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2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Oroanizationai conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 678.95(c).

2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements In 24 CFR 578.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies with the requirements In 24 CFR 578.95. Including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance Nvith 24 CFR 578.75(9);

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b);

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Houslno bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c);

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements In i24 CFR 578.99. as applicable;

2.6.5. Other-Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD; and

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting specific confidentiality and security requirements for HMIS
data (76 PR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected Identifying information of any Individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall t>e kept secure and confidential;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilrriing, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are othenivise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reoortlng Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports;
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3.1.1. Annuai Performance Report f APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract/Grant Completion
Date, ah APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing In particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed In section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, Including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
wooing days In advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth In the applicable HUD Project
Application #SF-424.

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed In all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined In 24 CFR Part 578: Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550; and

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed In the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS. or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A.
In accordance with the CoC Program interim njle, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a permanent housing program as outlined In Section 2.2. Exhibit A
and other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Program participants offered the option of voluntary participation in vendor-provided mental
health and/or substance abuse treatment; and

6.2.1.2. Program participants provided with Individualized treatment and care plan which Includes
targeted case management needs assessment Identifying goals the individual has chosen
to pursue.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed In Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.

TMMCSNM/CtMSPCI ExNWIA ConWCtor Wtlfltt
SFYi 2020-2021 _
SS-2020-«MS-04J»eRMA-05 5 5 W



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Cafe Program

Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Shelter Plus Care Permanent Supportive Housing Program Funding

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37, Block
1.8, Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement Is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

1.2.1. NH General Fund: 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0005L1T001B10

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Shelter Plus Care Permanent Supportive Housing

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care:

T.2.7.1. August 1, 2019-July 31. 2020, nottoexceed $285,240

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Rental Assistance: $271,860 Type te.

1.2.8.2. Administrative Expenses: $13.380

1.2.8.3. Total program amount: $285,240

1.2.8.4. Vendor Match (25%): $71,310

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1)copy of the audited financial report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

2.2. Conformance to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified in 2 CFR part 200.
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2.3. If the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United Slates in 'Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations. Program Activities, and Functions,' within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Project Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs; As used In this Agreement, the term 'Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly incumed by the Contractor In the performance of the Project Activities, as'
determined by the State to be eligible and allovrable for payment in accordance vyith Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, and guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 578.39 through
578.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing: transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for ail components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eligible activities in a single project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all grant funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 578.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source and use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matching
contribution is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are
supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Pavment of Project Costs;

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shali only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eilglbllity, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written approval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shall be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified In this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shali be made through the utilization of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development" Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing
Act (HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550). in an amount
and time period not to exceed as specified In Section 1.2. Exhibit B.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments:

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an Invoice from the Contractor for
the arnount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request fonm
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B..
all Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to:

housinQSUDOortsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses,

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report, Termination Report or Audited Financial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shali disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to' this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed in Exhibits A and B, or
NH-HMIS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed in accordant
with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes iimited to adjusting
amounts between budget iine items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may t>e made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified.

5. Expense EHQlbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availabiiity of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. OoeratinQ Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Properly taxes and insurance (Including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must l^e based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structure where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1:5. Utilities, including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. Fumiture and equipment.

5.2.2. ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter and supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repairing
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. SuPDortiveServices

5.3.1. Eligible supportive sen/ices costs must comply with ail HUD regulations in 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs Of assessment required by
578.53(a) (2);

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5 3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
particlpant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experiencing homelessness. including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of Improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5^3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
^  employment assistance and job training programs are eligible, Including

classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-job Instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring leaming skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2!8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attomeys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attomeys. for advice and
representation in matters that Interfere with homeless individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training;

5.3.2.11. Mental Health Services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explanations about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and Intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatient detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form of assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e)(1)- (16)
of this section is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional iicensure or certifications
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless youth; persons living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless Individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. State, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies and procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term, up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months: or

5.4.3.3. Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
rent.

5.4.5. Ah advance payrherit of the last imbnth's rent may be provided to the landlord, ih addition
to ̂ e security deposit and payment of first rhonth's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance vriil only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable, as determined
by the Contractor, in relation to rents being charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use. grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rwt to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasing-funds
oniv: Property damages may t>e paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security'
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described In 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subreciplents may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or In a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assistance Is provided through contracts between the
recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organliation. or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the owner of
an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assistance If they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a rninimum of one morith long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to, necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and relati^ costs of tt)e staff of the coribactor's, or other staff
engage in program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contractor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program, involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
Include the following:

TkMCSNH/CLMSPCI ExhiMB Contnctor
SFYt 2020-2021
SS-2020«4S^4-PERMM)9 Pft9e7af10 Da»



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Cafe Program

. Exhibit B

5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments to
those budgets and schedules;

5.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1 .i2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program results against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supervising persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8. above, Exhibit B.

• 5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs Incumed for official business in carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements, Including such services as general legal services,
accounting services, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
program, Including such goods and services as rental or purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental reyiew. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasing:

When the Contractor is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization(s}, or organizations that are members
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.
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5.6.1. Requirements:

5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent for all or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable In relation to rents being charged
In the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable in relation to rents t)elng charged for
comparable units, taking Into account the location, size, type, quality, amenities,
facilities, end management services. In addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and the rent paid may not exceed
HUD-determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are Included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs are operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent, the Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent may be provided to the landlord In
additlbn to security de^sit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified In 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must t)e calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(bX8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable in comparison to
rents charged In the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The portion of rent paid with grant funds may not exceed HUD-determlned fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay individual landlords directly; funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Properly damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itseif.

5.6.1.14. Housing must t>e in compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is located regarding^he
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water); however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD regulations (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone, Internet access,
cleaning, paiidng. pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management Svstem

6.1. Fiscal Control: The Coritractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
vyhich assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or suchiequtvalent system as the State may require.
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SPFriAl PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, In the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance wHh Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determlnatioh shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall Include all
Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants arKJ agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form end that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to afair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of emptoymenl on behalf of the Contractor, any SubrContractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retreactlvo Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding. It Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shell be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on v^ich the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Condttlona of Purchaso: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Departrhent to purchase services
hereunder at a rale which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereurider to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;

OV13/10
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to t>e ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT, DISCLdSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

6. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above. theContractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ell
iiKome received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, end which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, ail ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
ir>-klnd contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
.services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ell invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3.' M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipierit of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an arinual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close ofthe
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management end Budget Circular A-133, 'Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and.the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the'US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
flie Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitatiori of obligaflons of the Conb'act, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws end the regulations of
the Department regarding the use end disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected vyith the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, hi^
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses Incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Departrhent to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Finar^al Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract end all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the p>erformanc6 of the services of Contract shall Include ̂ efollowing
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: AD materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS t^efore printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written .approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders end regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws wrhich shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor v^ll procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with alt rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor nvIII provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP is on file, For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it Is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limitod English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the t)asis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Erihancoment of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights,
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall, inform its employees In writing; In the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractora: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the sutxrontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that.specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate *

19.3. Monrtor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule identifying aii subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's perfomiance will be reviesved

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and IrKllrect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
In accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a descripfion of the services and/or
goods to.be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible Individuals hereunder. shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.6. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to In the Contract, the said reference shall t>e deemed to mean
ell such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

ExtUbit C - Spedsl Provisions Contractor Initlats
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Nohvithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any slate or federal legislative or executive action that reduces; eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services urider this Agreement
Immediately, upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
.modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor vmtten notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
terniination. develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but rK>t limited to clients receiving
senrices under the Agreement are transitloned to having servjces delivered by another
entity iricluding contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal
j

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1986 (Pub. 1. 1 DG^Sb. Titie V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 70i et seq.). and further agrees to have the Cdntractor'B representMive. as Identified In Sectlohs
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fbOowing Certific^on:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OtHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCA'hON -.CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - COI^RACTORS

this certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151.-5160 of the Dnjg-Free
Wort(placeActof1988(Pub.L. 100^90. TnieV.SubtiteD; 41 U.S.C..701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulatiorts were amended and published ̂  Pert II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (ppges
21661-21691), and require certification by gmntMS (end by inference, sub-gmnt^ and sutiK
contradors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drugrfrM workplace. Section 3017.63b(c) of the
regul^pn provides thi^ a grantM (arid by infererice, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that Is a St^e
rhay elect to make one certificatibn to Oie Detriment in each federal fiscal )«8r In lieu of certiftcates for
each grarit during the federal iftscal yrar covered by the cenification. The .certificate set out below is a
mateflai representation of fact upoh .y^ich reliance is placed when the egericy awards the grant, False
cerUfication or yiolatlph of the certification shall be grounds.fof suspension of payrhents. suspension or
termlnatiori of grants, or ̂ vemmeht wide suspension or debarment. Ccritractors using this fpJ^ should
Mnd n to:

Commissioner '
NM departrhent of Health and Hiirrian Services
129 PlMsarit Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or wiO coritinue to provide e drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispehslr^, ppssessio'n or use of a cphtrofled sututance is prohibited in the grantee's.
workplace end specifying the actions thai )MI] be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Esti^Ilshing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to Inform employees about
1.2ri.. The dangers of dreg abuse In workplace:
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a .drug-free workplace:
1.2.3. Any available drug counselirtg, rehabilitet.lpn. and empl^ee assistar^ce p^rams; er^d
i .2.4. The penalties that rriay be irhposed upon employees for drug'abuse violations

occurring In the woikplaM:
1.3. Making It a ̂ uirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

giveri a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a):
1.4. Notifyihg the ̂ ptbyM In the etaternent required by pieiregraph (a) that, as a condition of

employnient under the grant the employee will
1.4.1. ^Ide by the temis of t^ stetemer^t and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of iits or her conviction for a viplatiori pf a criminal dreg

stkute occurring In the workplace no later than fî  calendar days efter such
conviction:

1.5. No^ng the agency In writing, within ten calendar d^ after receding notice .under
subparagr^h V4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice ̂  such conyictiiDn.
Employers of convicted erhplpyees rhust provide notice, Iriciuding i^itibn title, to every grarit
officer ph vmose grant actr^ the porivicted eniptoyee was working, uhlass the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
Identifl^ion numberfs) of each affeded grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, withlri 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparag^h 1.4.2, with mpect to any erhployee who Is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appf^riate personnel jBCtlon against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the fequirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactprity In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabDitatbn program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to rnalrrtaln a drug-free workplace through
irripiemehtatlbn of peregraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3,1.4,1.6. end 1.8.

2. The grantee, may Insert In the space provided betow the 8lte(8) for the p^rmance of work done In
connection vrtth the specific grant

Place of Performance (stwt address, dty^ county, state. zip co^) (list tach location)

Check p If there are workplaces on file that are not Wentlfred here.

the Mental Heatth Center for Southern New Hampshire
Vendor Name: Center for Lite Management

(TSrte ' Name: Vtc Topo.
Title- Presider^t/CEO

D - CertlflcaUon regarding Onrg Free Ver^ Wteh
WorXptsda Requtrements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor Identified In Seiction 1.3 of the General Provisions egrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further egfees to have the Contracbir's representative; ̂  Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the ̂ neral Provisions execute the followihg Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES r CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACtORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Piograrhs (Ind^e jsppticable progr^ covered);
Temporsry Assistance to Needy Families under Tifie iV*A
•Child Support Enforcerhent ProgrOT urtder TWe iV-0
•Social Seiylces Block Gixmt Program under Title XX
•Medibid Prog.^ under Tltje XIX
•Cbimrnunlty Services Block Grent under Tide VI
•Child Cere Developrhent Bjock Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge end belief, that:

1. NO Federal appropriated funds heve l^fi paid or will be paid by or ori behalf of the urtdersighed, to
any person for Influerrclng or ettemptlrig to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memter of Congress in
connection the eivbrding of any Federal cphtract, continuation, rene^^l, amendrrient, or
modificbidn of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
bb^rantee or suh-cdntrector).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds ̂ ve been paid or will be paid to any p^on for
Ihfluenclrig or attempting to influence an officer or emptoyee of any. agency, a Merhber of Congress,
an offkrer of empbyee iaf Congress, or eh empbyM ̂  e Member of Congress In connection with this
Federal corttract, grant, loan, or cooperative egreement (and by specific mention sub-Qrantee or sub-
cpntrector), the undersigrred shall complete and submit Standard Forrn LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accohiance with b instructions, ettached and identified ea ̂ andard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included Iri the Mfd
documerit for subrowards all tiere (deluding subcoiltracts, sub-grants, .and contracts under grants,
loans, and cbo^rative agreements) end that all iBub-fOCipients shall certify and disclose according.

This Mrtlficatbn Is a material represefrtatbn of fact upon which reliance was pieced wtien this transaction
was or entered Into. Submlssbn of this c^tification Is a prerequisite for making or entering Into this
bansactton imposed by Section 1352, THie 31. U.S. Code, -^y person who fails to file Ow requlrod
certificeiion shall be subject to a civil penalty of riot less than $10,000 and not more thari $1Ci0,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Narine- jhe Mental Health Center fbr Sbutherh New Hampshire
d/b/aXLM Center for Life Management

Narne: vicTopo.
Tifle: President/CeO

E - Ceftttcasbn R0S«nDng Lobbytng VendorlnMcts

CUOHKV11071J Page 1 oTI bete



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

the Vendor WentJfi^ in Section 1.3 of the General Provlsiona agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the Prwident. Exijcutive Orter 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
SusMnslon and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
represdntative. as identifiod in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provtsioris execute the following
Certificatlbfi: '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION ^ iL
1. By slgrilng and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective prirnery partlclpont Is providing the

certification set put below.

2  The inability of a person to provide the certification required below not heccssprtly result In denial
of participation in this' covered transaction, tf necessiary'. the prospective paitelpant shall submit en
exptanatloh of why it cannot provide the ceirtificatipn. The cer^ication or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Departmerit of Health end Hurnan ServlpW (DHHS)
detenriinalion whether to enter into this transaction. Hoiwver. failure of ttte prospective primary
participant to himish a certification or an explanation shalj disqualify such person frorn participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause Is a material representation of fact upon, which reliance was placed
y^en DHHS detelmlned to enter ifito this trarisBction. If it Is later determiried that the prospedive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies
evaliable to the Federal Government. DHHS msy terminate this ̂ nsaclion for cause or default.

4 The prospective prinnary participant shaP provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS egen^ to
whom this proposal (contract) is siibrhltted if at any time toe prospective primary participant teams
that its certification wqs ononepus when submitted or has become erroneous by reasori of changed
circumstances.

5. Tlte terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,* "suspended." 'ineligible,' "lower tier covered
trahsaction.' '^rticipant.' 'person." 'prirhary c«3yered tfahsactibn.' 'princlpal."propcrsal. • end
^voluntarily excluded.' as used In this,clause, have the meanings set out In the Oefinltiona and
Coverage sections of the rules ̂ plementirig Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions!

6 The prospective primary participant agrees by submltiing this proposal (contract) that, should toe
proposed cove^ transaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower her covered
transactlori vrith a person whp is debarred, suspended, dectered In.eligible. or voluntarily excluded
fw participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospeclivo primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarrribht, Suspenslori. fnel^ibility end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tter Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS. without modification. Iri ell lovirer. tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier coyeied transactions.

8 A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective particip^t in p
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended. Ineliglbte. or Involuntarily excluded
from toe covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification te erroneous. A participant rnay
decide the method and frequeri<^ by which It determines the eligibility of its prir«:lpals. Each
paiticlp^t may. but is not requb^ to. chock the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9 Nothing contalried In the foregoir^ shall bo construed to require establishment of a system of records
iri order to rerider ln good faith toe ccrtlficatton required by this clause. The knowledge and

F - CcrWlcalJon Resarding Oebamiert. Suapemton Vendor Wlteb.^ _
And Other ReepomtoOtty Metier*
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

irrformation of a participant is ncA required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordir^ary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these inst^ctions. if a participant In a
covered tiwsaction krtowirigly eriters into a lower tier covpwd transactbn with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voiuntairiiy excluded from partidpation lr> this transact. In
addition to other remedies available to fre Federal government, DHHS rnay terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRAN^CTlONS
11. The prospective primary participaht certifies to the best of Its knowledge end belM, tt^ jt etyi its

principals:
11.1. are not present debarred, suspended, proposed for dabarment. declared tneiiglble, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency,
i 1.2. have not wfthlh a three-yMr period preceding this proposal (cdr^tract) beeri cpnvlded of or had

a  judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offerise in
conhi^dn with pbtalriing, attempting to obtain, or performing a pubDc (Federal, State or local)
transactloh ix a contract iii^r a public ̂ nsactipn; vioi^on F^efal or SWe antitrust
statutM or ramrnission of embezzlernerit. thi^. forgery, bri&ery. felslfication id destruction of
recofds, making false datanients, or receiviing stolen ptbperV.

11.3. are not presently Indided for otherwise ciimihaliy or civlliy charged by a govemmehtal entity
(Federal, State or ibcaO with corhmlsSion of any of the offeriSes enumerated In paragraph (l)(b>
of this certificetion; end

11.4. have not within a threoryMr period preceding this applicafen/prd>osa! had one or more pubDc
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary pertidpent is unable to certify to any of the statemerrts In this
certiftcation. such prospective paiiidpant shaD attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier partidpant, ez

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it end its prindpats:
13.1. are not presently debarrad, suspended^ proposed for debarment, dedared irietiglble. or

voluntarily exduded frorn participation In this transaction by any fed^l department or agency.
13.2, wt*re the prospective toy^r tie/ participant is unable tp.certify tp any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an e^qtlanation to this proposal (coritrect).

14. The prospective lower tier partidpant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) |t wiQ
indude this clause erititied 'Certification Regarding Dcbarmeht, Suspension. Inelrgibility. arid
V.oluhtary Exctudon - Lowiar Tier CovisriBd Trarisactlbris.' without modification In all lower tier covered
tiiansactiohs iand in all solidtatiohs for lower tier covert transections.

Vendor Name: the Mental Health Center for Southern New Harnpshire
CLM Center for Life Management

Name, Topo.
Title: President/CEO

ExNM F - CeftfflcBSon RegsrdlnB Debsjment. Suspension Vendor tr^Qala
And Other RespordbtDty Metters
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identtfled In Section 1.3 of the Generei Provisions egreM by signature of the ConVactor'e
representative as Identified in Sectloris 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor win cohply. and will require any sut^rantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondisaiminatibn requlrerhents, ]i^lch nriay Include;

- the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. S^lon 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute froni discrimlilating, either In employment practices or in
the deHvery of services or benefits, on the baste of race, color, rel^ldn, hationei orlgiri. and sax. The Act
requires certain iriedplehbs to produce ah Equal Erfipioymeht Opportunity Plan;
• the Juvenile Justice Dellnquerwy Prevorition Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Greets Act. R(^ient8 of federal funding under this
stat^ eie prohibited frdrn dtecrfrninatingi either irt employment practidss ̂  in the delivery of senrteM or
benefits, on the basis of r^, color, retigibn, natkmsi origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan r^ulremehts;
. the Ciyi) Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S;C. Section 26odd. y^ich prohibit recipients of federal flnaricial
assistance from dtecrlmiriatir>g on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program' or activity);

- p)e Rehabilitalion Act of 1073 (29 U.S.C. Section 704), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistar^ from dteci^inatlng on' the basis of diisaUiity, In rega^ to empioynient end the delivery' of
services or benefits, in any program of &:tivity;

• the Americans ¥vith Disunities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal c^poitunity for perMns with disabilities in employrnent, State end local
gbvemfnent services, public accomrnbdations. corhmerclalfecllities. and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 19^ (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685^B6), which prohibits
discHmihatipn on basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrtmlnatiqn Act of 1075 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6iC)6-07); which prohibits dtecrirhinatlon on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal flnanctal assistance. It doM hot include
OTploymeht disdrirhlniatori:

- 28 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Odpartmcht of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Progfams); 28 C.F.R. pt 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations tt Nondlscrimlnatlon; Equal Emplovmr^ent Opportunity; Policies
ar^ Prixedures); ̂ Mutlve Order No. 13279 (equ^ protection of the laws for faith-based and cornmunlty
o^nlzetlons); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fuh^ental principles end "pbiicy-makihg
cnteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizatbns;

28 C.F.R. pt 38 (U.S. Oepartment of Justice iRegulations ̂  Equal Treatment for FeHh-Ba^
Organizations); end Whlstleblower protections 41 U:iS.C. ̂ 712 and TTie National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Flsca! Year 2013 (Put). L. 112-239. enacted Jariuary 2.20131) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contrad Employee Whistlcblower Protections. whid> prdects empl6y«^ against
reprisal for certain whistle blo^ng edivities in connection with federal grants and coritracts.

The certificate set out below is a material represen^tjon of fad upon which laliar^ce is placed when the
agericy awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certiftcation shall ̂  grounds
suspension of i^ymerits. suspension or termination of grants, or QO>«mment wide suspension or
deba'rmerit

EiMMG
Vendor Inftteh.

.  Owifl Otv<uflom
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
ExhIbH G

In the event a Federal pr^te court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a findino of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, c^r. religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a co^ ̂  the finding to the Office for CWI Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the O^artmerit of Hwith and Human Services, and
to the De^rtrnent of Health and Hurhan Ser^ces Offce of the Ombudsrnan.

The Vendor Identified Iti Section 1.3 of the General provlskms agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Wentified Iri Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certificatipri:

1. By signing and submitting this jaropt^l (contract) the Vendor agt^s to cornply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Narney The<MentaiMeafth Center fer Southern New Hampshire
CLM C^ter for Life Manaaemient

Name: Vic To^.
Title: President/CEO

EiMMG
Vendor tnillsb

CTlrrtrr (itriii|Sw«« 'rti nimrrw-tr r—^ Trtcmrt or FOti OMiAOrgvtzMn
" ' (M WNtMteMT praMn
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTA . TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental tobaqco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Ad), requires thd smokiiig not be p^ltt^ |n any portion of any I door faicility ovmod or leased or
conbicted for by an wtfty and used routinely or regularty for the pr vision of heatih. day care, education,
orYibrary services to children under the age of 18. If the services ar funded by Federal progrems either
directly or through State of local goyemmehts. by Federal grant, cb itred, iban, or loan guarantee. The
taw does not apply to children's services provided In prtvate resider ces, facilities funded solely t>y
M^lcaie or Medlcaid funds, end portions of fadlities used for Inpat snt drug or alcohol treatment Failure

fto cpfn^ ydth the provbions of the ̂  may rMuIt in the Impos^n
$ldbO per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative complianc t order on the resporuiible entity.

o

re eThe Vendor Identifled In Section 1.3 of ,the General Provisions eg
repreMntatfve as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the G^rteral
certtficatibn:

1. By signing and subniittihg this contract, the Vendor agrees to
aQ c^>pilcabie provisions of Public Law 10^227. Part C.

Vendor Name: i] Mental Health Center for Southern Now Hampshire
b/a CLM Center for Life Management

^/.i f
Toi 0Name:

TItte:

Vic

Piresid'i  nt/'

CUOHHSn 10713

Etfiiblt H - Cedtflcstion Repardin
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Pe^ 1 of 1

e clyil monetary penal^ of up to

, by signature of die Contractor's
Provfsiohs, to execute the fotlowihg

make reasonable eifforts to comply with
mown as the Pro-ChlWren Act of 1094.

Vendor Irifliala

bate



New Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABUmr ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor Identified In Sectiori 1.3 of the Gerieral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Idenfflable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to Inislhew associates. As defined herein, 'Elusiness
Associate' shali niean the Veridor and subcpritractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have a^ss to protected hearth information under this Agreement and 'Covered Enttty"
shall mean the State of New Herhpshlre. Depart^ht of Health end Human Servl^s.

(1 Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' In section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of F^eral Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

(j. "Designated Record Set* shaD have the same meaning as the term "designated record sef
In 45 CFR Section 1W.501.

e. 'Data Aodreaation" shall have the same meaning as the tefrh "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations' shall have the same meanlrig as the term "health care Durations'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Acf means the Health Infofmation Technology for Economic and Clinica! Health
Act, 11116X111. Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub|ic Law
104-191 and ̂ e Stendairids for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Informatiph, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

I. 'Indlvlduar shall have the sarrie meaning as the term "indivjduar In 45 CFR Section 160.103
arid shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

j. 'Privacv.Ruie' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Indlvldualiy Identifiable Health
Infbririation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
bepartrhent of Hearth and Hurrian Services.

k. "Protects Health Information' shall have the same rrieanlng as the term 'protected health
Information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Eiuslriess Associate from or on Ijehalf of Covert Entity.

3^,4 exNMI VcnJbf Inltlab _
Health Insuranba Portabfiity Ad
BuelneM AMOdiite Agreefflent A /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

/

I. 'peauired bv Law" shall have the same rtieanlng as the term 'required by lav/ in 45 CFR
Sectioh 164.103.

"fiecretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Hurrian ̂ rvlces or
hi^er deslgnee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Prote^on of Elecfronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and arheridments thereto.

o. ^Unsecured Prote^ed Health Information' means prptect^ health Information that js not
seared by a technology standard that renders protected health Information unu^ble,
unreadable, or indeclpheratite to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards deveioping organization tfiat is accredited by the Americati National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise deifiriBd hereiri shall have the rrieanirig
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 162 and IM. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

^2) Business Associate. Use and Disclosure of Protected Health InfomiatloJL

a. Business Associate shail not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Iriformation (PHI) exicept as reasonably nece^ry to provide the services outllniBd under
E^lblt A Of the Agreernerit. Further, Business Associate. Induding but not limited to all
Its directors, pfficers, employees arid agents, shall not use. dIscloM. rnalntain or irahsmlt
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of ̂  Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use ordlsdbse PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
il. As required by law, pursuant to tee terms set iforth In paregrajDh d. belw; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To tee e)rtent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreerrwnt to dl^lose PHI to a
third party, ̂ sinew Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from tee third party teat such PHI will be held cbnfideritially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (li) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Asspciate, in accordarice the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the cbrifidentiality of the PHI, to the extent It has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d^ The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure |s reasonably necessary to
provide services under Eiteibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In res^nse to a
request for disclosure oh the basis teat It Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an pppprtunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, tee Buslniess

V20V4 ExNbill Vendor tnitlala

Heslth Infturance PortabOIty Act
SuUnoM AMOCtata Apmement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business As^ciate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional reactions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
M^guards of PHI pursuant to the Pnvacy and Security Rule, the Business Assbdiate
shall be bound by such addttiorial restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shatj abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQUtloris and Actlvlttes of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediatety
after the Business Associate becornes aware of any use or disclosure of prbt^ed
health information not provided fpr by the Agreement Iricludihg breaches of unsecured
protected health infbi^atlon and/or ariy security incident ̂ at may have art Impact on the
protected health Infohnation of the Cpvered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall imn^iately perform a risk assessment when it becornes
aware of any of the above sihjations. the risk assessment shajl include, but not t>e
lifhlted to:

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Informatipn Involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthbHzed person us^ the prbtected health information or to whom the
d isciosurie was nriade.;

0 Whether the protected health infprmatibn was actually acquired of viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment wittiln 48 hours of the
breach and Imrriediately report the firidifigs of the risk assessrnerit in writing to the
Cbvefed Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections pf the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate sha|l niake avallat}le all of its Internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use arid disdbsure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Buslriess Associate oh behalf of Covered Entity to the ̂ cretary for
purposes of deterrrilnlng Covered Entity's cbmpliarice with HIPAA and the Privacy arid
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require alj of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreerhent to agree ih vrrttirig to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, friduding
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business a^ociate
agfeenrients with Contractor's Intended business associates, who vifii) be receiving PJ^'

3/20t4 . £xNMI Vendor InitUb
HeeShlnsunm PortabOty Act
ButJneu Associate Agreement
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Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, rfghts of enforcement and jndemnificatioh from such
business associates v^o shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of ̂ e standard
contract provisions (P'37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protect^ health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business A^oclate shall imake available during normal business hpuit at its offices a!)
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disdosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for pulses of enabling Covered En^ to determine
Business Assodate'e cornpliahce with the terms of the Agrisement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Eritity,
Business /^^pciate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to en Individual in order to meet the
r^uirerhents under 45 CFR Action 1^,524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a writter) reque^ from Covered Entity for an
ameridment of PHI or a record iateut an Individual contained |r) a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Cbyered .Enti^ for
amendment and incorporate any such arnendmentto enable Covered Entity to ̂tfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Sectiori 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI arid Iriformalion relat^ to
such disciosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI In accordarice with 45 CFR Sectiori
1M.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting.of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shaU rnake available
to Covered Entity sucli inforrnation as Covered:Enti^ may require to fulfill Its.obligations
to provide ah accounting Of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordartce with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendrhent of, or accbuntirig of PHI
directly from ̂ e Business Associate, ̂ e Business As,s6cliate shall within two (2)
business days forvyaid such request to Coyered Entity. Covered Entify shajl have the
responsibility of resjwndlng to fonwrded requests. However, if forwaiding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Aissodate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy arid ̂ curity Rule, the Business Assodate
shall instead respond to the indrviduars request as required by such lavv and notify
Covered Entity of such respond as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days Of tehnination of me Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assodate shall return or destroy, as spedfied by Coyered Entity, a|i PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate |n corir^ectldn with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies oir back-up tapes pf such PHI. If return or
destrijctibri is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been othervrise .agr^ to In
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to e^end the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction irifeasible, for so long as Business
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<^ociate malhtelhs such PHI. If Covered Entity, In Its sole discretion, requires that the
Biisine^ Msocjate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Eritity ̂ at the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entttv

a. Covered Entity shall notify Busirmss Associate pf any changes of i(mitation(8) In ite
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the e)dent that such change of limitation rhay affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered En% shell promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In, or revocation
of permission provide to Covered Entity by Individuals, whose PHI ntay be. used or
disclosed by. Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. ^

c. Covered entity shall prpmptiy notify Business Associate of any resections on of
disdbsure of PHj eat Covered Entity hSs agreed to in accoidance with 4i5 CFR 1^.522,
to die extent that such resection rfiay effect Business Associate's use or dii^bsure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of e.e standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement ihe Cbvered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreerhe.nt upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreenrierit set forth herelri as Erfiibit I. The Coyefed Entity may either Imfr^iatety
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeffame specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reaulatorv References. All terms used, but not othenMse defined herein,
shall have ̂ e sarne meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to tiriie. A reference |n the Apreerhent, as ariiended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendfhenti Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is.necessary for Covered
Entity to cbrhpty with the changes iri the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal end state law.

c. Data OwriershlD. The Business Assodate acknov^edges that it has hp ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity. In the Agreement shall t>e resot^
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Riile.
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S^reomion. If any term or cphditipn of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
perBon(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms of
conditiohs which can be given effect without the invalid term or condllioh; to this end the
terms and coridltibns of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disdosure of PHI, return or
destriictioh of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreemerit In section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of sectipri (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed mis ̂ iblt I.

Department of Health and Human Services

vState

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CUM Center for Life Management

Namejof the Vendor

Sig^tufe of Aiithoriiey Representative "^Signature of Autjfohzed Representative

Name of Authorize Representative

ntfS of Authofizekl "Representative

Date

VIcTooo
Name of Authorized Repre^ntatiye

.  Presklent/GEO- .. .

Title of Authoriztrf Representative

f
/O^
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CFRTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awards of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 arid award^ on or after October 1,2010, to report oh
data related to executive coniperttation and associated ̂ t^ier sub^rants of $25,000 or more. If
Inltla] award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modiflc^ipns result In a total award to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Pert 170 (Reportirig Subavyard end ̂ ecutive Comperisation Information), the
Department of Health end Human Services (DHHS) must report the following Inforrnption for any
eubaward or contri^ award subject to the FFATA reporting requlremohts:
1. Narne of entity
2. Amount of award
3. FurSding agency
4. I^CS code for contra^ if CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award tide idescirtptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Locatioh of die eidlty
6. Prtt^ctpiie place df^rformarKe
9. Unique identifier of d>e er)tity (DUN S d)
10. Total cornpehsatlbn and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 80% of annual giass revenues are fiarri the Federal gpvemment. arrd those
revehueis are greater than $25M ahnuaOy end

10.2. Comperisation Infoirmatibn Ishot already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant redpients rhusl sulwnit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Vendor Identified In Sectlori 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the proylslohsof
The Feddral Funding Accouritabllity and Transparency Act, Public 109-282 arid PrAlic Uw 11(^252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subiaward and Executive Compensation Information), arid further agrees
to have the Contract's representativo, as WentHied In Sections i .11 and 1.12 of the Gerieral Provlslohs
execute the folldwing Certificatibri:
The beipw nOTwd Vendor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply with aD applicable provisions of tire Federal Ftnancial
Account^llity and Transparency Act.

Vendor N^: Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
CLM Center for Life Managemerd

Name: VicTopo,
TlUe: Presldant/CEO

&WM J - Cwtfflcstlon RBflardSrig tre FedersJ F<rtlng v^^tnBlah - ■
AccountsMBy And Tfsmperency Act (FFATA) CorripOxnce A/n//! ̂
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FORMA

Aa the Vendor Identified In Sectbn 1.3 of the General Provtsiona, I certify that the reaponaea to the
below liatM queatioha ere true and accurate.

1. Tha DUNS number for vour entity is: QflS573541

2. In your businesa of ofganizetion'a preceding completed fiaul year, did your buaineaa or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or rnore of your annual groaa revenue In U.S. federal cdntrects, aubcontracta.
loaha. granta, euthgranta. arKl/or cooperative asreerhenta; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
groaa revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontrecto. loans, gianU, aubgrants, end/or
cooperati^ agreements?

NO YES

3.

If the answer to d2 above b NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 etx)ve b YES, please answer the fbOowing:

does the public have access to information about the cbmpenaation of the exMutivea ir;) your
busing or or^nlzation through periodic re^rta filed under section 13(a) or I5i(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Reveriue Code of
19867

NO YES

4.

if the answer to 03 above b YES, atop here

If the answer to 03 above b NO. please answer the following:

The names and cbmpenaation of the five most highly corhpensated officers in youfibusineaa or
organiza^ ere aa followa:

Narne:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Ampunt:

Arhount:

Amount: ̂

Amount:

cumHsmons

J - C«rtiflc8tion the Fedsfsl Fundtng Vendor Inltlsts
AccountabOfy And Trenaperency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may t>e reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar temi referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the sarrie meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as alt medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal Information Including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is govemed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge. Instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Ust updaw 1 (V09/18 ExWWt K Contractor tnlttels.
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a rietwork that Is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected rietwork (design^, tested, and
approy^. by'means of the State, to bansrnit) wilj be cor^sider^ an open
rietwork and not adequately s^ure for the ̂ nsmlssion of urtericrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or cpnfidehtlal DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's Identity, such as their name, social security numt>er, personal
information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, blometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" In the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the /^erican National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must .not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
includirig but not limited to all Its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information In response to a

V5.L«stupdolo.1(y09/18 Exhibit K Contrador inlUais
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request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, In response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant'to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must,be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance vrith the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Enciyptioh. If Erid User Is trahsmlttihg DHHS data containing
Confidential Data betw^ri applications, the Contractor attests the appilcatipns have
been evaluated by an expert kno^edgeabie In cytjer security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transrhlssion via the Internet -

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End Uwr rnay only enipioy emaij to trafismit Confidential Data if
email is encrvbted and being sent to arid being received by ernail addresses of
persons authprized to receive such inforimation.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to ̂ nsmit Gonfidentiai
batia. the secure socket layers (SSL.) must be used and the site rhust be
secu^. SSL encrypts data transrhltted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End U^r rnay not use file
hosting ser^ces, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Gonfidentiai Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via ceriifidd ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. if End User is ernplbying portable devices to transmit
Corifidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wifeless Networks. End User may not transrhit Confidential Date via art open
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wlreie^ network; End User must ernploy a virtual private net^rk (VPN) when
remotety transrhlttirtg via an open wireless netwoilc.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User Is erhploying remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network 0/PN) rrlust be
installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which Information will
trahsrriitt^ or eccesseki.

10. SSH File transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidendal Data. End, User will
structure the Folder end access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the irnplemehtation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedF^MP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

\

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Infonnation on Its systems (or Its
subrcontractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Ck>ntractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor v^ll document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certlftcatlon to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will t)e jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

rV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compiiance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with ail applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will.be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreemerit

•  (BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compiiance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for ariy changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreemerit by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor vrill not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §56). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https*7/www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply vwth such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is fumished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Uwt update 1(V08/18 ExhibliK Contrectof InJUato.
DHHS intonneUon

Security Requirements
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DMHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as norv-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not t>e
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
resen/es the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein. HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance vrith this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personalty identifiable information is Involved In Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-t>ased responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 1(yOS/18 ExhWtK Contjectof IniUafs
DHHS InformaUon

Security Requirements A/,.
Page 8 of 9 Oatef^^^
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

Vi: PERSONS TO COf^ACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

8. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Ustupdate iCyOQ/18 ExhibilK ContractofInWaJs.
OHHS InfonnatJon

Security Requlfements / /^, /,
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-27I-9474 1<S00^52-334S Ext 9474

Fai:603-27M230 TDD Access: I-S00-73S-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 27.2019*

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the l^onorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTtON

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
and Supportive'Services to homeless individuals and families through the Federal Continuum of Care
Program in an amount not to exceed $668,260, effective August 1,2019, or upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, whichever is later, through July 31, 2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name
Project
Name

Vendor # Location
SFY 2020

Amount

SFY 2021

Amount

Total

Amount

Cross Roads

House, Inc.

Permanent

Supportive
Housing,
Expansion
Program

177203-B003

Eastem

Rockingham,
Strafford &

Merrimack

Counties

$351,102 $31,918 $383,020

The Mental

Health Center for

Southem New.

Hampshire dba
CLM Center for

Life Management

Shelter

Plus Care 1,
Permanent

Housing
Program

174116-R001

Westem

Rockingham
County

$261,470 $23,770 $285,240

Total 612,572 55,688 $668,260

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2020, and are anticipated
to be available in SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95^2-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING. HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM .

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $612,572

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sen/Ices TBD $55,688

—  1

Total $668,260
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EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal application process,
prior to the grant award being issued. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developrnent (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards funding based on its criteria. The application process
and timing of grant terms do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start dale of a grant is based
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued. This results in Continuum of
Care Program grant start dates, and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in various months
throughout the year.

The attached agreements represent two (02) of thirty (30) total agreements, many of which have
renewal dates dispersed throughout the calendar year, with vendors who are located throughout the state
to ensure ongoing, statewide delivery of housing services through New Hampshire's Continuum of Care
Program.

' The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing programs that shall
deliver rental/leasing assistance, service access, supportive services and associated administrative
services targeted to serve a minimum of fifty-three (53) participants from August 1,2019 through July 31,
2020.

Using the "Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize participant's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main purposes;

•  A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

•  A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement In addressing homelessness
on a year-round basis.

• An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure contract compliance and
vendor performance:

• Annual compliance reviewis shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements. ^

•  Statistical reports shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis from ail funded vendors, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars.

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-housing, transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,
or outreach/supportive services will be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry in
the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System, unless they are required by
law to use an alternate means of data collection. The NH Homeless Management Information
System will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs funded through this contract.
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As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of each of these contracts, the Department resen/es the right to
extend each agreement for up to two (02) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive
Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize these requests. Permanent Housing,
and Supportive Services for New Hampshire homeless individuals and families may not be available in
their communities, and there may be an increase in demand for sen/ices placed upon the region's local
welfare authorities. It may also cause individuals and/or families to become homeless.

Source of funds: 1CX)% Federal Funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, Office of Community Planning and Development, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
Number (CFDA) #14.267.

Area served: Rockingham, Strafford & Merrimack Counties; a minimum of frfty-three (53)
individuals will be served.

In the event that the Federal funds become no longer available, General funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted.

frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Tht Dcporlmenl ofHeoUh and Human Services'Miuion is to Join eonwiunities and families
in prouiditig oppartunidea for cUiscne to achieve health and independence.


